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2024
592,206,332.03 97.82
13,201,851.31 2.18
605,408, 183.34
( 58,821 ) 100.00
2024
1,301,586,294.28 222.48
396,014,692.55 67.69
46,120,991 .82 7.88
17,086,992.35 2.92
15,913,553.97 2.72
14,612,765.55 2.50
12,491,720.40 2.14
2.840,789.31 0.49
60,644 ,925.25 10.37
13,140,108.81 2.25
1,295,404,711.10 221.42
585,048, 123.19
( 56,843 ) 100.00
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2024

Goldman Sachs Institutional Funds, plc -

1 Goldman Sachs Australia Enhanced Income Fund 3,078,155.48 174.22 536,279,308.10 192.39 592,206,332.03 97.82
2024
1 | Ampol Ltd FRN 12/09/80 2080 12 7.9602 | 21,530,000.00 1.02 | 21,983,799.38 1.02 | 22,040,338.51 3.77
o | Resolution Life Australasia Ltd FRN 2035 12 7.6602 | 17,620,000.00 1.01| 17,832,215.48 1.01| 17,795,361.29 3.04
12/09/35
3 | societe Generale SA VAR 03/12/72 2172 12 4.8750 | 18,000,000.00 1.00 | 18,000,000.00 0.98 | 17,597,626.38 3.01
4 | National Australia Bank Ltd FRN 10/19/72 2172 10 19 8.3502 | 17,218,000.00 1.04 | 17,987,128.38 1.02 | 17,574,228.37 3.00
5 g;j;g%",ra & New Zealand Banking Gr VAR 2034 20 6.4050 | 16,000,000.00 1.00 | 16,000,000.00 1.04 | 16,601,529.60 2.84
6 ’i\gjggfgger‘"ces Holdings Pty Ltd FRN 2080 10 7.4629 | 16,300,000.00 1.00 | 16,295,255.57 1.00 | 16,364,570.82 2.80
7 | credit Agricole SA VAR 05/29/34 2034 29 4.2000 | 17,000,000.00 1.04 | 17,644,948.99 0.90 | 15,263,961.36 2.61
8 | uBS Group AG VAR 08/27/24 2024 27 4.3750 | 15,000,000.00 1.00 | 15,000,293.94 0.97 | 14,612,765.55 2.50
9 | cooperatieve Rabobank UA VAR 10/26/32 2032 10 26 7.0740 | 14,000,000.00 1.00 | 14,000,000.00 1.04 | 14,507,344.60 2.48
10 | Nufarm Finance NZ Ltd FRN 04/16/72 2172 16 8.3108 | 15,845,100.00 0.85 | 13,438,251.87 0.91| 14,415,505.90 2.46
11 Ei%g%ga'th Bank of Australia FRN 2032 11 7.1029 | 12,500,000.00 1.00 | 12,500,000.00 1.04 | 12,949,551.25 2.21
12 | challenger Life Co Ltd VAR 09/16/37 2037 16 7.1860 | 12,000,000.00 1.00 | 11,984,711.68 1.04 | 12,521,575.20 2.14
13 | LLOYDS BANKING GROUP PLC VAR 08/31/33 2033 31 7.0860 | 12,000,000.00 1.00 | 12,000,000.00 1.04 | 12,491,720.40 2.14
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1fi 1 H 0)
14 Sg%;;gl'\'at'o”a' Finance Pty Ltd 3.8% 2031 3.8000 | 15,000,000.00 1.00 | 14,948,349.07 0.82| 12,318,991.05 2.11
15 | Macquarie Bank Ltd FRN 06/07/32 2032 7.0503 [ 10,500,000.00 1.00 | 10,512,157.41 1.03| 10,813,327.35 1.85
16 | Westpac Banking Corp FRN 06/23/33 2033 23 6.6651 | 10,000,000.00 1.00 | 10,000,000.00 1.02 | 10,209,138.00 1.75
17 | Bank of Queensland Ltd FRN 05/19/32 2032 19 6.1328 | 10,300,000.00 0.98 | 10,115,447.63 0.98 | 10,134,458.09 1.73
18 ggig%f & New Zealand Banking Gr FRN 2032 12 7.1186 | 9,500,000.00 1.00| 9,500,000.00 1.03| 9,817,565.05 1.68
19 | Societe Generale SA 5% 05/19/27 2027 19 5.0000 [ 9,844,000.00 1.04 | 10,270,830.97 0.97| 9,528,459.73 1.63
20 Insurance Australia Group Ltd FRN 06/15/45 2045 15 6.7000 8,840,000.00 1.00 8,830,543.07 1.01 8,906,293.81 1.52
21 | Pacific National Finance Pty Ltd 3.7% 2029 24 3.7000 | 10,020,000.00 1.00 | 10,018,116.84 0.87 | 8,733,229.40 1.49
09/24/29
22 | WESTPAC BANKING CORP VAR 11/15/38 2038 11 15 7.1990 [  8,000,000.00 1.00| 8,000,000.00 1.08| 8,613,721.60 1.47
23 gﬁj}g%f & New Zealand Banking Gr FRN 2034 16 6.3008 | 8,500,000.00 1.00| 8,500,000.00 1.00| 8,532,217.55 1.46
24 | MACQUARIE GRO AUD 100 PFD 8.5102 80,648.00 98.24 | 7,922,810.98 | 105.69 | 8,523,687.12 1.46
25 | AMP Bank Ltd FRN 10/07/32 2032 10 9.0129 |  8,000,000.00 1.00 | 8,000,000.00 1.03| 8,214,503.20 1.40
(2024
1 | varra A$ Cash Reserves Fund 13,140,108.81 1.00 13,140,108.81 1.00 13,140,108.81 2.25
(2024
1 | 90-DAY BANK BILL Mar24 2024 433,511,598.14 433,447,025.04 74.09
2 | 90-DAY BANK BILL Sep24 2024 12 432,086,428.81 432,763,660.82 73.97
3 | 90-DAY BANK BILL Jun24 2024 13 432,584,346.61 432,594 ,646.70 73.94
4 | AUST 3YR BOND FUT Mar24 2024 15 40,238,747.20 40,638,552.80 6.95
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2023 2024
2014 49,744,189.17 7,339,755,112 8.24 1,216
2015 59,912,168.14 8,840,040,409 5.98 882
2016 56,970,642.30 8,406,018,271 6.40 944
2017 30,990,659.53 4,572,671,814 6.59 972
2018 28,831,434.17 4,254,078,112 6.03 890
2019 48,446,307.21 7,148,252,629 5.48 809
2020 49,788,786.22 7,346,335,407 5.35 789
2021 47,417,571.77 6,996,462,715 5.40 797
10
2022 37,544,885.38 5,539,747,838 4.62 682
11
2023 37,344,986.13 5,510,252,703 4.65 686
2023 40,506,238.52 5,976,695,494 4.88 720
39,090,215.77 5,767,761,337 4.83 713
38,379,973.80 5,662,965,134 4.77 704
37,320,403.24 5,506,625,498 4.65 686
38,432,626.54 5,670,734,046 4.76 702
40,193,846.18 5,930,602,004 4.86 717
37,864,781.40 5,586,948,496 4.70 693
37,344,986.13 5,510,252,703 4.65 686
10 36,752,128.84 5,422,776,610 4.58 676
11 38,086,451.78 5,619,655,960 4.83 713
12 40,300,793.34 5,946,382,057 5.05 745
2024 38,625,228.79 5,699,152,508 4.90 723
2012 26
2018 28
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2014 129,976,554.66 | 12,628,522 ,051 9.88 960

2015 164,865,354.37 |  16,018,317,831 9.10 884

2016 143,729,212.38 | 13,964,730, 275 8.90 865

2017 117,232,957.90 |  11,390,354,190 9.00 874

2018 171,859,373.26 |  16,697,856,706 8.94 869

2019 568,908,701.96 |  55,275,169,482 8.78 853

2020 594,705,892.55 | 57,781,624,520 8.10 787

2021 456,149,292.13 |  44,319,465,223 7.99 776

20;2 323,125,888.30 |  31,394,911,307 7.67 745

11 288,140,229.75 |  27,995,704,723 7.78 756
2023

2023 302,283.255.07 | 29,369,841,063 7.73 751

299.613,593.81 |  29,110,456,775 7.71 749

297.399.870.46 |  28,895.371,414 7.73 751

294.125.123.03 |  28,577.196,954 7.69 747

290.776.371.52 |  28,251.832,257 7.66 744

294.490.527.47 | 28,612,699, 649 7.73 751

291.050,071.98 |  28,278.424.994 7.79 757

288.140.229.75 |  27,995.704.723 7.78 756

10 287.407.231.07 |  27,924.486.571 7.77 755

11 280.448.847.68 | 27.248.410,041 7.82 760

12 283.218.879.49 |  27.517.546,331 7.96 773

2024 281.065,338.08 |  27,308,308,248 7.97 774
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2014 8,184,213,894 10,011
2015 10,775,093 ,560 9,337
2016 5.360,559,728 9,138
2017 4,603,090, 032 9,271
2018 4,252.511,012 9,244
2015 4,930,245, 467 9,134
2020 3,913,809,943 8,602
2021 5.677,136,630 8,733

10 4,371,238,255 8,386
2022 ’ ’ ’ ’

11 4,117,545,097 8,216
2023 ] b ] ] 7
2023 4.559,671,076 8,356

4.504,911,702 8,301

4.,420,211,153 8,297

4.,367,580,534 8,233

4,404,924, 260 8,170

4,252,799,580 8,225

4.,260,637,739 8,247

4,117,545,007 8,216

10 4,095,108, 320 8,171
11 4,083,919,825 8,199
12 4,009,177,569 8,302
2024 3,948,958 ,537 8,290
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2018 104,800,963.23 15,463,382,125 10.16 1,499
2019 331,712,144.29 48,944,126,890 10.24 1,511
2020 347,746,052.51 51,309,930,048 9.72 1,434
2021 301,439,921.49 44,477,460,416 9.81 1,447
20;2 191,752,803.56 28,293,126,165 9.50 1,402
20;% 170,450,184.94 25,149,924,788 9.76 1,440
2023 181,467,590.42 26,775,542,966 9.63 1,421
179,268,617.90 26,451,084,571 9.61 1,418

177,975,043.00 26,260,217,595 9.64 1,422

176,481,500.25 26,039,845,362 9.61 1,418

174,362,886.34 25,727,243,879 9.58 1,414

172,813,137.30 25,498,578,409 9.68 1,428

173,559,487.80 25,608,702,425 9.75 1,439

170,450,184 .94 25,149,924,788 9.76 1,440

10 150,827,836.12 22,254,647,220 9.75 1,439

11 151,538,988.33 22,359,577,728 9.83 1,450

12 150,721,680.99 22,238,984,030 10.01 1,477

2024 148,766,329.82 21,950,471,965 10.04 1,481
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2013 10 0.840 124
2014

2014 10 0.760 112
2015

2015 10 0.360 53
2016

2016 10 0.360 53
2017

2017 10 0.360 53
2018

2018 10 0.360 53
2019

2019 10 0.320 47
2020

2020 10 0.240 35
2021

10

2021 10 0.195 29

2022
11

2022 10 0.180 27
2023

2023 0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

10 0.015 2

11 0.015 2

12 0.015 2

2024 0.015 2
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2013 10 0.840 82
2014

2014 10 0.840 82
2015

2015 10 0.540 52
2016

2016 10 0.480 47
2017

2017 10 0.480 47
2018

2018 10 0.480 47
2019

2019 10 0.480 47
2020

2020 10 0.480 47
2021

10

2021 10 0.300 29

2022
11

2022 10 0.240 23
2023

2023 0.020 2

0.020 2

0.020 2

0.020 2

0.020 2

0.020 2

0.020 2

0.020 2

10 0.020 2

11 0.020 2

12 0.020 2

2024 0.020 2
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2013 10 480
2014
2014 10 480
2015
2015 10 280
2016
2016 10 240
2017
2017 10 240
2018
2018 10 240
2019
2019 10 240
2020
2020 10 240
2021
10
2021 10 240
2022
11
2022 10 240
2023
2023 20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
2024 20
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2018 28 0.150 22
2018

2018 10 0.360 53
2019

2019 10 0.360 53
2020

2020 10 0.360 53
2021

10

2021 10 0.315 46

2022
11

2022 10 0.300 44
2023

2023 0.025 4

0.025 4

0.025 4

0.025 4

0.025 4

0.025 4

0.025 4

0.025 4

10 0.025 4

11 0.025 4

12 0.025 4

2024 0.025 4
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2013 10 0.55
2014
2014 10 18.20
2015
2015 10 13.04
2016
2016 10 8.59
2017
2017 10 3.03
2018
2018 10 3.15
2019
2019 10 3.47
2020
2020 10 5.42
2021

10
2021 10 10.83
2022

11
2022 10 4.55
2023

x 100

10.00
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2013 10 5.82
2014
2014 10 0.61
2015
2015 10 3.74
2016
2016 10 6.52
2017
2017 10 4.67
2018
2018 10 3.58
2019
2019 10 2.28
2020
2020 10 4.57
2021

10
2021 10 0.25
2022

11
2022 10 4.56
2023
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2013 10 3.14
2014

2014 10 1.94
2015

2015 10 0.87
2016

2016 10 4.08
2017

2017 10 2.30
2018

2018 10 1.41
2019

2019 10 3.20
2020

2020 10 4.31
2021

10
2021 10 1.23
2022

11
2022 10 0.83
2023

2018 28 3.10
2018

2018 10 4.33
2019

2019 10 1.56
2020

2020 10 4.63
2021

10
2021 10 0.05
2022

11
2022 10 5.89
2023
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2013 10 1,596,945.46 3,928,264.03 6,035,097.84
2014 (1,596,945.46) (3,928,264.03) (6,035,097.84)
2014 10 7,083,728.95 3,106,480.39 10,012,346.40
2015 (7,083,728.95) (3,106,480.39) (10,012,346.40)
2015 10 2,126,238.83 3,240,229.78 8,898,355.45
2016 (2,126,238.83) (3,240,229.78) (8,898,355.45)
2016 10 1,300,852.71 5,499,332.83 4,699,875.33
2017 (1,300,852.71) (5,499,332.83) (4,699,875.33)
2017 10 1,608,479.14 1,524,040.01 4,784,314.46
2018 (1,608,479.14) (1,524,040.01) (4,784,314.46)
2018 10 5,286,066.20 1,223,293.90 8,847,086.76
2019 (5,286,066.20) (1,223,293.90) (8,847,086.76)
2019 10 4,022,685.66 3,563,298.97 9,306,473.45
2020 (4,022,685.66) (3,563,298.97) (9,306,473.45)
2020 10 5,983,505.31 6,514,109.23 8,775,869.53
2021 (5,983,505.31) (6,514,109.23) (8,775,869.53)
20210 10 2,880,885.60 3,532,312.77 8,124,442.36
2022 (2,880,885.60) (3,532,312.77) (8,124,442 .36)
20221 10 2,200,852.90 2,287,562.94 8,037,732.32
2023 (2,200,852.90) (2,287,562.94) (8,037,732.32)
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2013 10 6,921,628.11 2,600,540.12 13,157,246.20
5014 (6,921,628.11) (2,600,540.12) (13,157,246.20)
2014 10 8,194,864.28 3,241,215.43 18,110,895.05
2015 (8,194,864.28) (3,241,215.43) (18,110,895.05)
2015 10 2,541,868.77 4,511,290.73 16,141,473.09
2016 (2,541,868.77) (4,511,290.73) (16,141,473.09)
2016 10 2,252,957.23 5,373,104.64 13,021,325.68
2017 (2,252,957.23) (5,373,104.64) (13,021,325.68)
2017 10 8,936,500.50 2,726,972.47 19,230,853.71
5018 (8,936,500.50) (2,726,972.47) (19,230,853.71)
2018 10 47,528,291.15 1,985,509.24 64,773,635.62
2019 (47,528,291.15) (1,985,509.24) (64,773,635.62)
2019 10 23,448,277.71 14,846,546.86 73,375,366.47
2020 (23,448,277.71) (14,846,546.86) (73,375,366.47)
2020 10 14,176,463.78 30,441,499.00 57,110,331.25
2021 (14,176,463.78) (30,441,499.00) (57,110,331.25)
20210 10 7,054,471.36 22,012,515.77 42,152,286.84
2022 (7,054,471.36) (22,012,515.77) (42,152,286.84)
20221 10 3,513,777.90 8,621,385.05 37,044,679.69

(3,513,777.90) (8,621,385.05) (37,044,679.69)

2023
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2013 10 313,030.55 229,848.17 817,532.35
5014 (313,030.55) (229,848.17) (817,532.35)
2014 10 778,849.13 442,321.19 1,154,060.29
2015 (778,849.13) (442,321.19) (1,154,060.29)
2015 10 44,419.21 611,864.54 586,614.96
2016 (44,419.21) (611,864.54) (586,614.96)
2016 10 120,877.06 210,985.11 496,506.91
2017 (120,877.06) (210,985.11) (496,506.91)
2017 10 91,999.35 128,484.98 460,021.28
5018 (91,999.35) (128,484.98) (460,021.28)
2018 10 164,999.42 85,245.92 539,774.78
2019 (164,999.42) (85,245.92) (539,774.78)
2019 10 72,611.33 157,403.27 454,982.84
2020 (72,611.33) (157,403.27) (454,982.84)
2020 10 323,966.96 128,902.01 650,047.79
2021 (323,966.96) (128,902.01) (650,047.79)
20210 10 192,759.47 321,564.16 521,243.10
2022 (192,759.47) (321,564.16) (521,243.10)
202;1 10 112,933.58 133,020.69 501,155.99
2023 (112,933.58) (133,020.69) (501,155.99)
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2018 28 10,328, 962.52 14,660.21 10,314,302.31
o (10.328.962.52) (14.660.21) (10.314.302.31)
2018 10 25,885,390.67 3,802,649.64 32,397,043.34
s (25.885.390.67) (3.802.649.64) (32.397.043.34)
2015 10 12,971,135.46 9,577,566.21 35,790, 612.59
o (12.971.135.46) (9.577.566.21) (35.790.612.59)
2020 10 8,235,918.71 13,297,369.12 30,729,162.18
201 (8.235.918.71) (13.297.369.12) (30.729.162.18)
20210 L0 4,610,461.65 15,165,687.84 20,173,935.99
o (4.610.461.65) (15.165.687.84) (20.173.935.99)
202;1 L0 1,334,176.10 4,035,375.60 17,472,736.49
o (1.334.176.10) (4.035.375.60) (17.472.736.49)
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Ampol Ltd FRN 12/09/80 79607% iTT%
Resolution Life Australasia Ltd FRN 12/09/35 7.6607% 1.04%
Societe Generale SA VAR 03/12/72 AB750% 301%
Mationad Aurstralia Bank Ltd FRN 107/19/72 BASOT% 3100%
Australia & New Zealand Banking Gr VAR 00/20/34 EADSO% 284,
AusNet Services Holdings Pty Ltd FRN 10/08/80 7 A620% 150%
Credit Agricole SA VAR 05/29/34 4.2000% 161%
UBS Group AG VAR DB/27/24 43750% 150%
Cooperatieve Rabobank UA VAR 10726732 7.0740% 148%
Nufarm Fnance NZ Ltd FRN 04/ 16/72 B3108% 1TEE%
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2023 30

2023 30 2022 30
©) 643,607,403 62,532,895 735,144,294 71,426,620
(b) 17,828 1,732 19,717 1,916
©) 1,163,947 113,089 1,100,000 106,876
1,336,365 129,841 2,069,397 201,063
©) 708,478 68,836 932,960 90,646
37,123 3,607 60 6
@ 12 14,981,861 1,455,638 27,387,500 2,660,970
661,853,005 64,305,638 766,653,928 74,488,096
©) 1,400,364 136,059 9,214,318 895,263
©) 14,430,000 1,402,019
@) 1,338,779 130,076 2,064,234 200,561
708,380 68,826 11,249,819 1,093,032
') 1,557,134 151,291 1,397,774 135,808
@) 1,322,460 128,490 1,406,396 136,645
114,897 11,163 74,455 7,234
() 91,751 8,915 95,102 9,240
63,423 6,162 57,266 5,564
© 56,959 5,534 112,559 10,936
) 19,740 1,918 37,505 3,644
©) 11,261 1,094 58,966 5,729
() 1,412 137 37,389 3,633
@ 61,253 5,951
23,139 2,248 10,839 1,053
6,709,699 651,914 40,307,875 3,916,313
655,143,306 63,653,724 726,346,053 70,571,783
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2023 30

2023 30 2022 30
() 371,388 36,084 34,700 3,371
11,354,873 1,103,239 49,573,442 4,816,556
17,122,069 1,663,580 16,633,282 1,616,090
31,310,408 3,042,119 (37,690, 865) (3,662,044)
(17,101,760) (1,661,607) 9,688,508 941,335
43,056,978 4,183,416 38,239,067 3,715,308
@) 5,499,403 534,322 6,862,182 666,730
0 5,438,073 528,363 6,862,182 666,730
() 345,308 33,550 433,372 42,106
©) 326,366 31,710 432,605 42,032
©) 197,714 19,210 257,332 25,002
142,401 13,836 68,202 6,627
16 108, 644 10,556 133,004 12,923
() 90,394 8,783 81,678 7,936
67,880 6,595 55,992 5,440
©) 21,465 2,086 85,777 8,334
61,777 6,002 48,434 4,706
12,299,425 1,195,012 15,320,760 1,488,565
30,757,553 2,988,404 22,918,307 2,226,743
(h) 10 21,526,223 2,001,488 30,763,336 2,988,966
9,231,330 896,916 (7,845,029) (762,223)
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2023 30
2023 30 2022 30
726,346,053 70,571,783  1,010,685,648 98,198,218
71,892,260 6,985,052 153,671,917 14,930,763
(152,326,337)  (14,800,027)  (430,166,483)  (41,794,975)
9,231,330 896,916 (7,845,029) (762,223)
655,143,306 63,653,724 726,346,053 70,571,783
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2023 30

2023 30 2022 30
9,231,330 896,916 (7,845,029) (762,223)
(1,636) (159) 931 90
(h) 10 21,526,223 2,091,488 30,763,336 2,988,966
(371,388) (36,084) (34,700) (3,371)
90,394 8,783 81,678 7,936
30,474,923 2,960,944 22,966,216 2,231,398
©) (63,947) (6,213) 970,000 94,245
733,032 71,221 4,266,676 414,550
(37,063) (3,601) (60) (6)
91,536,891 8,893,724 263,645,466 25,615,793
©) (14,430,000) (1,402,019) 6,986,193 678,779
(10,541,439) (1,024,206) 2,783,045 270,401
) 159,360 15,483 (683,397) (66,399)
40,442 3,929 15,353 1,492
12,300 1,195 9,572 930
6,157 598 (1,594) (155)
(b) (3,351) (326) (33,892) (3,293)
® (17,765) (1,726) 13,049 1,268
©) (47,705) (4,635) (4,805) (467)
©) (55,600) (5,402) 29,448 2,861
© (61,253) (5,951) (24,557) (2,386)
@) (83,936) (8,155) (638,094) (61,997)
(7,813,954) (759, 204) 6,837,344 664,316
89,807,092 8,725,657 307,135,963 29,841,330
373,277 36,268 16,220 1,576
(126,371) (12,278) (46,642) (4,532)
90,053,998 8,749,646 307,105,541 29,838,374
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2023 30 2022 30
72,116,742 7,006,863 161,222,191 15,664,348
(153,051,792)  (14,870,512)  (434,446,844)  (42,210,855)
(21,526,223) (2,091,488)  (30,763,336) (2,988,966)
(102,461,273) (9,955,137)  (303,987,989)  (29,535,473)

1,636 159 (931) (90)
(12,405,639) (1,205,332) 3,116,621 302,811
27,387,500 2,660,970 24,270,879 2,358,159
14,981,861 1,455,638 27,387,500 2,660,970
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2023 30 2022 30
100
307105
2023 30
140,062,433 249,343,696 2023 30
708,380
1,336,365 2022 30
453,520,781 744,335,624 2022 30
11,249,819

2,056,491
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2023 30 2022 30
2023 30 2022 30
«
2023 30 14,981,861 14,981,861
2022 30 19,064 27,368,436 27,387,500
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2023 30
1,400,364 1,400,364
1,400,364 1,400,364
2022 30
2022 30
710,205,307 710,205,307
24,938,987 24,938,987
710,205,307 24,938,987 735,144,294
2022 30
2022 30
9,214,318 9,214,318
9,214,318 9,214,318
2023 30 2022 30
2023 30 2022 30
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2022 30
2022 30
(€H) @D
() @
13,128 (469,159) (456,031) 380,000 (76,031)
2,812 2,812 2,812
1,868 1,868 1,868
(21,401) (21,401) (21,401)
79,845 (101,993) (22,148) (22,148)
12,667,414 (4,545,801) 8,121,613 (6,930,000) 1,191,613
11,331 (76,355) (65,024) (65,024)
(356,884) (356,884) 356,884
8,893,990 (280,631) 8,613,359  (7,500,000) 1,113,359
3,222,539 (3,257,855) (35,316) (35,316)
46,060 (104,239) (58,179) (58,179)
24,938,987 (9,214,318) 15,724,669  (13,693,116) 2,031,553
@
@
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10 100
10,000 10,000
10 100
10 100
2023 30 2022 30
(

2021 30 57,269,904 650,048 8,775,870 30,720,162
6,754,009 192,759 2,880,886 4,610,462
(21,924,073) (321,564) (3,532,362) (15,156,688)
2022 30 42,099,840 521,243 8,124,394 20,173,936
3,491,103 112,934 2,200,853 1,334,176
(8,556,100) (133,021) (2,287,514) (4,035,376)
2023 30 37,034,843 501,156 8,037,733 17,472,736
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30

30

288,061,512

7.778122 322,736,489

7.665979

42,986,672 8,215.927907 46,972,199 8,386.511655
58,246,437 4.646174 58,396,694 4.621410
265,848,685 9.755134 298,240,671 9.505029
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14,981,861 14,981,861
643,607,403 643,607,403
1,336,365 1,336,365
1,927,376 1,927,376
14,981,861 646,871,144 661,853,005
1,400,364 1,400,364
708,380 708,380
4,600,955 4,600,955
6,709,699 6,709,699
2022 30
27,368,436 19,064 27,387,500
735,144,294 735,144,294
2,069,397 2,069,397
2,052,737 2,052,737
27,368,436 739,285,492 766,653,928
9,214,318 9,214,318
11,249,819 11,249,819
19,843,738 19,843,738
40,307,875 40,307,875
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2023 30

455,458,847 74,885,295 73,525,040 24,840,985 628,710,167

455,458,847 74,885,295 73,525,040 24,840,985 628,710,167

2022 30

504,179,101 68,298,923 76,805,562 30,981,517 680,265,103

504,179,101 68,298,923 76,805,562 30,981,517 680,265,103
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2023 30 2022 30
* 2023 30 2022 30
14,981,861 27,387,500
17,828 19,717
1,163,947 1,100,000
34,542 24,938,987
1,336,365 2,069,397
708,478 932,960
37,123 60
18,280,144 56,448,621
2023 30 2022 30
0.64
66.07 53.18
8.31 13.35
3.54 3.18
21.44 30.29

100.00 100.00
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2023 30 2022 30
@ 8,326,008 1.15
@ 95,551 0.01
(€) 18,946,877 2.61
W 14,883,527 2.27
@ 19,064 0.00(3)
95,619 0.02
2,715 0.00(3)
14,981,861 2.29 27,387,500 3.77
*
380,000 0.05
123,947 0.02
280,000 0.04
480,000 0.07
280,000 0.04 720,000 0.10
1,163,947 0.17 1,100,000 0.15
)
@
®) 0.005
*
2023 30 2022 30
(€]
6,930,000 0.96
7,500,000 1.03
14,430,000 1.99
)
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2023 30

3,485,744 643,572,861 98.23
643,572,861 98.23
04/10/2023 AUD 25,366 JPY 2,420,743 HSBC Bank PLC 86 0.00
86 0.00
03/10/2023 JPY 4,982,670 AUD 52,428 HSBC Bank PLC (401) (0.00)
03/10/2023 usb 601,362 AUD 943,259 HSBC Bank PLC (5,349) (0.00)
(5,750) (0.00)
21/11/2023 AUD 984,335 USD 628,623 HSBC Bank PLC 5,594 0.00
21/11/2023 AUD 2,694,300 USD 1,730,238 Morgan Stanley & Co 388 0.00
22/11/2023 AUD 35,637 JPY 3,381,612 Morgan Stanley & Co 93 0.00
22/11/2023 AUD 110,297 JPY 10,316,970 Natwest Markets PLC 1,858 0.00
22/11/2023 AUD 552,243 JPY 51,259,001 Westpac Banking Corp 13,474 0.00
22/11/2023 AUD 1,187,616 JPY 112,833,300 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 1,658 0.00

Australia and New Zealand
15/11/2023 USD 577,567 AUD 896,984 Banking Group Ltd 2,453 0.00
21/11/2023 USD 1,139,640 AUD 1,765,437 HSBC Bank PLC 8,938 0.00
34,456 0.00
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21/11/2023  AUD 752,628  USD 487,486 UBS AG (6,369)  (0.00)
21/11/2023  AUD 2,147,723 USD 1,382,826 g;ﬁt:ﬁéigroﬁgstgew Zealand (5,282)  (0.00)
22/11/2023 JPY  2,125,927,116 AUD 22,915,686 Natwest Markets PLC (570,674)  (0.09)
22/11/2023 JPY  2,141,570,629 AUD 23,084,849 HSBC Bank PLC (575,414)  (0.09)
21/11/2023  USD 86,612,204 AUD 134,915,999 Barclays Bank PLC (64,068)  (0.01)
21/11/2023  USD 86,612,204 AUD 135,024,739 BNP Paribas SA (172,807)  (0.02)

(1,394,614)  (0.21)
643,572,861  98.23
86  (0.00)

(5,750)  (0.00)
34,456 0.01
(1,394,614)  (0.21)
12,936,267 1.97
655,143,306  100.00

AUD

JPY

USD
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2022 30

4,104,284 710,205,307  97.78

710,205,307  97.78
05/10/2022 AUD 6,317,193 JPY 583,372,639 Morgan Stanley & Co 48,155 0.01
06/10/2022  AUD 299,312 JPY 27,755,000 Westpac Banking Corp 1,027 0.00
05/10/2022 JPY 1,271,792,707 AUD 13,247,744 Morgan Stanley & Co 419,192 0.06
06/10/2022  JPY 10,991,646 AUD 116,260 Citibank NA 1,868 0.00
06/10/2022  JPY 27,673,000 AUD 286,073 Royal Bank of Canada 11,331 0.00
06/10/2022  JPY 37,929,676 AUD 394,505 é;igﬁ;igriﬂg 'ﬁ%’ Zealand 13,128 0.00
06/10/2022  JPY 83,624,000 AUD 853,681 Westpac Banking Corp 45,033 0.01
06/10/2022 JPY 230,263,784 AUD 2,417,760 HSBC Bank PLC 56,904 0.01
05/10/2022  USD 58,000 AUD 87,397 BNP Paribas SA 2,812 0.00
05/10/2022  USD 208,884 AUD 301,940 HSBC Bank PLC 22,941 0.00
05/10/2022  USD 102,731,775 AUD 150,886,422 Standard Chartered Bank 8,893,990 1.22
05/10/2022 USD 103,912,769 AUD 152,651,002 Morgan Stanley & Co 8,966,231 1.23
22/12/2022  USD 95,952,957 AUD 145,785,503 Morgan Stanley & Co 3,233,836 0.45
22/12/2022  USD 95,952,957 AUD 145,796,801 UBS AG 3,222,539 0.44

24,938,987 3.43
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05/10/2022  AUD 372,094  USD 253,000 Credit Suisse (21,401)  (0.00)
05/10/2022  AUD 728,427 USD 517,440 Royal Bank of Canada (76,355)  (0.01)
05/10/2022  AUD 1,300,371 USD 901,658 HSBC Bank PLC (101,993)  (0.01)
05/10/2022  AUD 5,629,320 USD 3,799,533 Standard Chartered Bank (280,155)  (0.04)
05/10/2022  AUD 7,293,650 JPY 688,420,068 Westpac Banking Corp (104,239)  (0.02)
05/10/2022  AUD 7,803,443 USD 5,317,786 ggﬁgﬁéigriﬂg Tig Zealand (467,396)  (0.06)
05/10/2022  AUD 145,979,350 USD 95,952,957 UBS AG (3,257,855)  (0.45)
05/10/2022  AUD 153,360,737 USD 101,008,135 Morgan Stanley & Co (3,738,871)  (0.52)
06/10/2022  AUD 435,423 JPY 40,679,498 ggigﬁé'g rgﬂg m’ Zealand (1,763)  (0.00)
06/10/2022  AUD 13,879,041 JPY 1,332,533,296 Morgan Stanley & Co (441,800)  (0.06)
22/12/2022 AUD 1,413,963 USD 917,000 Morgan Stanley & Co (10,180) (0.00)
06/10/2022  JPY 26,620,808 AUD 286,572 Standard Chartered Bank (476)  (0.00)
06/10/2022 JPY  2,675,013,488 AUD 29,105,466 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (356,884)  (0.05)
06/10/2022 JPY  2,680,013,488 AUD 29,157,267 Morgan Stanley & Co (354,950)  (0.05)
(9,214,318)  (1.27)
710,205,307  97.78
24,938,987 3.43
(9,214,318)  (1.27)
416,077 0.06
726,346,053 100.00
AUD
JPY
USD
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GS Australla Hybrid Securiies Fund
Statements of Financial Position
As at 30 September 2023

Notes 30-8Sep-2023  30-Sep-2022
AUD AUD

Assots

Current Assets

Financial asssats at fair value through profit or loss 3c), 4 643,607 403 735,144,204
Interest receivable 3 [b) 17,828 18,717
Due from brokers:

Collateral amounts 3(e) 1,163,847 1,100,000
Receivable for investments sold 1,336,365 2,068,397
Receivable for Units subscribed 3{g). 8 708,478 632,860
Other asssts . Ty s 60
Cash and cash equivalents 3 (d), 12 14, 681 861 27,87 500
Total Assets 861,853,005
Liabllitles
Current Liabliitles
Financial liabilties at fair value through profit or loss 3(c) 4 1,400,364 8,214,318
Due to brokers:

Collateral amounts 3 (e) —_ 14,430,000
Payabie for Units redesmed (g8 1,338,779 2,084,234
Payabile for invesimenis purchased 708,380 11,248,818
Distribution fees payable 7 (d) 1,557,134 1,397,774
Investment management fees payable 7 (a) 1,322 460 1,406,396
Legal fees payabla 114,897 74 455
Manager fees payable T (b) 91,75 95,102
Audh feas payable 63,423 57,266
Administration and transfer agent fees payable 7 (c) 56,959 112,559
Custodian service fees payable Tih 19,740 37,505
Trustes fees payable 7 (@) 11,261 58,968
Interest payable 3 (b) 1,412 37,389
Ageni company feas payabls 7 (g) — 61,253
Miscellaneous fees payable 23,139 10,839
Total Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributabile to

Helders of Redesmable P-ﬁnlp-ﬁng Units) 8,709,609 40,307,875
Nat Assets Attributable to Holders of Redesmable

Participating Units 655,143,308 726,346,053

The sccampanydng nolss form an integrel part of the inancel sixtemens. 10
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GS Australla Hybrid Securities Fund
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 September 2023

Notes  308ep-2023  30-Sep-2022
AUD AUD

Income
Interest income 3{b) 371,388 34,700
Mel realized gain/{loss) on financial assels and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on:
Investments 11,354,873 48,573 442
Foreign curmency 17,122,089 16,633,282
Net change in unrealized gain/(loss) on financial assels and
financial Babilities at fair value through profit or loss on:

Investmants 31,310,408 {37.690,865)

Foreign curmency (17,101,760) 9,688,508
Net Income 43,056,978 38,239,067
Operating Expenses
Investment management fees 7 (a) 5,489,403 6,862,182
Distribution fees 7 {d} 5,438,073 6,862,182
Manager fees 7 (b) 345,308 433,372
Administration and transfer agent fees 7ic) 328,366 432,605
Agenl company fees 7{g) 187,714 257332
Legal feas 142,401 68,202
Custodian service fees 70 108,644 133,004
Interesi axpense 3{b) 80,384 81,678
Audit fees 67,880 55,992
Trustes fees 7 (e} 21,485 85,777
Miscellaneous expense . ®gmm 48434
Total Cperating Expenses 12,299,425 15,320,760
Net Income from Operations 30,757,553 22918,307
Finance Costs:
Distributions to participating Unitholders 3 (h), 10 21,626,223 30,763,336
Change In Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeamable Participating Units from Operations 231 (7,845,029)

The sccompamying nobes lorm an inbegral part of the nanciel sietements. 1
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GS Australla Hybrid Securtties Fund
Statements of Changes In Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
For the Year Ended 30 hphm_her!ﬁn

Notes  30-Sep-2023  30-8ep-2022
AUD AUD

MNet Assats Attributabie to Holders of Redeemable Participating

Units at Beginning of Year 726,346,053  1,010,685,648
Total Proceeds from redeemable parlicipating Units issued ] 71,892,260 153,671,917
Total Payments for redeemable participating Units redeemed B {152,326,337) (430,166.483)
Changa in net assets attributable to holders of redesmable

participating Units from operations 9,231,330 (7.845,029)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable

Participating Units at Year End 655,143,306 726,346,053

The sccompamying nobes lorm an inbegral part of the nanciel sietements. iz
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GS Australla Hybrid Securities Fund
Staternents of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 September 2023

Notes 30-Sep-2023 30-8ep-2022
AUD AUD

Cash Flows From Oparating Activitias
Change in net assels atiributable to holders of redeamable

participating Units from operations 8,231,330 (7.845,029)
Adjustmant for:
Exchange gains/(losssas) an cash {1,6348) 31
Distributions to paricpating Unitholders 3 (h), 10 21,526,223 30,763,336
Intarast incomea (371,388) {34,700)
Interesl expense 90,394 81,678
Total 30,474,923 22,966,218
Met (Increasa)/Decreasa In Oparating Assets:
Due from brokers:

Collateral amounts 3 (e) (63,947) 970,000
Receivable for investments sold 733,022 4,266,676
Other assals (37,063) (60)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 81,536,801 263,645 466
Net Increase/{Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Due to brokers:

Collateral amounts 3(e) (14,430,000) 6,986,193
Payable for Invesiments purchased {10,541, 438) 2,783,045
Distribution fees payable 7 (d) 158,360 (B83,397)
Legal fees payable 40,442 15,353
Miscellaneous fees payable 12,300 9,572
Audit fees payable 6,157 (1,584)
Manager fesa payable 7 (b) {3,351) {33,852)
Custodian service fees payable TN (17,785) 13,049
Trustee fees payable 7 (8} (47, 705) (4,805)
Administration and transfer agent fees payable 7 (g} (55,600) 20,448
Agent company fees payabla T (g) (61,253) (24,557)
Investment management fees payabla T [a) (B3,938) (638,0584)
Financial liabilfties at fair valua through profit or loss (7,813,954) 6,837 344
Cash Provided by/{Used In) Operating Activities 08,807,082 307,135,963
Interest received 37a.2vT 16,220
Interest paid (126,371) {46,642)
Met Cash Provided byi(Used in) Operating Activities 90,053,998 307,105,541
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceads received from redesmable participating Units issued 72,116,742 161,222,191
Payments for redeemable participating Units redeemed {153,051,792) (434,448, 844)
Distributions fo participating Unitholders {21,528 223) (30,763,338)
Net Cash Provided byf(Used In) Financing Activities {102,461,273) (303,087,088)
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash 1,636 _(831)
Met increase/{decreasa) in cash (12,405,639) 3,116,621
Cash and cash equivalents at Beginning of Year 27,387,500 24,270,879
Cash and cash equlvalents at End of Year 14,881,861 27,387,500

The sccompamying nobes lorm an inbegral part of the nanciel sistements. 13
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(G5 Australla Hybrid Securtties Fund
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For _H:u '!'plr I_Emlld 30 hptpm_her 21!2}!

Organization

&S Australia Hybrid Securiies Fund (the "Sub-Trust") s a sub-trust of MUGC GS Cayman Fund (the "Trust"), Tha Trust
ls an open-ended axampbad umbralla unit trust established by a frust deed under the Trusts Act 2011 (Revislon) of the.
Cayman |stands dated 10 February 2010 (as supplemanted or amended from time Lo time, the "Trus! Deed™) execuled
by Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Comparry (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee™) and Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services &
Banking (Luxembourg) 5.A. (the *Manager®). The Trust la regulated under the Mutual Funds Act (Revised).

Goldman Sachs Asset Management International ("GSAMI™), a related party 1o the Sub-Trust, serves as Investment
Manager pursuant o an investmenl management agresment ("‘Managemont Agresment) with the Sub-Trust
Tha Investmaeni Manager is responsible for oversesing and moniioring the day-to-day operations of the Sub-Trust's
affalrs regarding thelr investrments.

mmnwwmmmm:uﬂmﬁmﬂ.am party of the Galdman Sachs.

Thia Sub-Trust commanced operations and launchad Unit classsas on tha following dates:

A Cilasa of Units . Commencoment Dates |
AUD Clazs 28 Eagtmber 2012|
JPY Class (Hedged) 26 Septamber 2012|
USD Class 26 Sepwmber 2012
USD Class (Hedged) 28 March 2018

The Sub-Trusl will be terminated on 30 Septomber 2027, unless the Manager extends the duration of the Sub-Trust at
it discrotion on congullation with the Trustoo and tha Imvestmont Managor,

Tha finandal stalaments are praseniad in AUD (CAusiralian Dollar®), the Sub-Trust's funclional and preseniation
currancy. The Investmant Manager conslcars that this cumancy most accuratsly represants tha sconomic effects of the
undariying transactions, events and conditions of the Sub-Trust.

Invesiment Objactive

Tha investment abjocthe of the Sub-Trust, (Ihe “Fasder Fund™) is to seek to provide Uniiholders with a long-teerm total
ratum conslsting of incoms and capilal gains pdmarily by investing In subordinated term debt securities, parpetual
subordinated debt securities, prefemed securfties and senlor dedt sacurities Issued In Australlan Dollars through
investment into the Australia Enhanced Income Fund [l (the *Master Fund®). In relation to such securities, subordinatled
term debl securtes, perpetual subordinated debt securities and preferred securties ane collectively refemed to as *Hybrid
Securites”. Due o this investment objective, investors are subject to certain unique risks. The Sub-Trust's investments.
in other funds are sublect to the tarms and conditions of the respective invastes fund's Cffering Memorandum.

Tha investrment objective of the Master Fund s io seek lo primarily invesl its assats (axcluding cash and cash equivalents)
in a diversified portfolic consisting mainly of Hybrid Securities and senior debl securities msued in Australian Dollars,
Tha Master Fund may Invast In securiies lssued In other cumencias, and also may Invest In fiad, varable or floating
rates securities.

The investment managers of the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund are the same.

The Masler Fund may engage in transactions in financial derivative instruments as part of e general investment
palicy, including withcul Emitation, totel retum swaps, index fulures, contracts for diferonces, forward fomeign curmency
contracts and options.,

Tha Masiar Fund may utlize transastions In squity index futuras, bank bill frtures, govemnmant band futures, or comman
stocks, primarily by short salling, in order to hadge carlain exposuras.
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35 Australla Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For _Hm Year I_Emlul 30 3""“"“.“." 2023

Imvesiment Objective [continued)

Thers can ba no assurance that the Sub-Trust's invesimants will be succesasful or thel tha investmant objective of the
Master Fund will ba achleved or that its portfollo deslgn, risk monitaring and hedging strategles will be successful.

The significant accounting policies of the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund are consistent.

As at 30 September 2023 and 30 Saptember 2022, the Feedar Fund holds 100% of the Master Fund's net assets.
The Master Fund Is a sub-fund of Goldman Sachs Institutional Funds pic (the "Company”), an Investment company
with variable capital incorporated with limied lability in Ireland with registered number 307105 and established as an
umbredla fund with segregated lability between sub-funds,

Tha Feader Fund invests inlo the Masier Fund, Tolal subscriptions and redemptions made by the Feeder Fund into the
Master Fund during the year ended 30 Seplember 2023 weera ALID 140,082,433 and AUD 249,343,698, mapectivaly,
As at 30 September 2023, there were no capital commitment cbligations and the Sub-Trust had AUD 708,380 due
to the Master Fund for unsetled purchases and AUD 1,338,385 due from the Masier Fund for unsetied sales, Total
subscriptions and redemptions made by the Feeder Fund into the Master Fund during the vear ended 30 Septamber
2022 were ALUD 453,620,781 and AUD 744,335 824, respectively. As at 30 September 2022, there were no capital
commitment obligations and the Sub-Trust had AUD 11,249,818 due to the Master Fund for unsetiled purchases and
AUD 2,056,481 due from the Masler Fund for unsatlied sales.

The Feadar Fund invests into the Master Fund by purchasing tha Master Fund's redeamabla participating shares.
Tha Mastar Fund allows redemptions of these shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Master Fund's portfolio and comespanding movements in the fair value of the Master
Fund may expase the Feeder Fund 1o a loss.

Bummary of Significant Accounting Policles
Financial Statamants
Bagzis of Preparation of Financial Siaterments

mmmﬂmmm“muuhmdmmmthlwmmrlmﬂ
The financial statemants have baen prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and liabilties (including dervative instrumeants) at fair value through profit or loss. The preparation of
the finandal statements requires management to make certain eslimates and assumptions that may affect the amounts.
reporied in the financial staternents and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

L Neow standards, amendmants and Interpretations effective for annual perlods beglnning on or after 1
January 2022 and wers effective or applicable to the Sub-Trust

Thers are no new standards, amendmants and interpretations to existing standards that have been adopted by the
Sub-Trust,

ik, Hew standards, smendments and interpretations issued but are not yet effective and have not been
oary adopled by the Sub-Trust

Thera ane no new standards, inlerpretations or amendments 1o existing standards that are not yet effective that would
be expected to have a significant impact on the Sub-Trust.

Investmant Transactions, Related Investment Income and Oparating Expanses

Thé Sub-Trust reconds s investmant transactions on & rade date basls. Reallzed galns and kosses ans based on
the First In First Out ("FIFO®) mathod, Dividend income and dividend expensa are reconded on the ex-dividend date
and interest and interest expense are accrued over the Iife of the investmant. Overdraft expenses which ame accrued
aa incurmad, if any, are included in interest expense. Interest from financial assels at fair value through profit or loss
includes scoretion of market discount, orginal issue discounts and amortization of premiums and is recorded into
income ovar the life of the underdying Investment. Intorest from finencial sssots ot fair value throwgh profil or loss
and dividend income are recognized and presanied on a gross basis before withholding tax, if any. In the Stalaments.
of Comprahensive income. Interest income Indudes interest from cash and cash equivalents. Reimbursameant of
axpanses | representad In the Statemants of Comprahensive Incoma, I any.
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35 Australla Hybrid Securtties Fund
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the Year I_Emlnd 30 hm 2023

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles {continuad]
{b) Investment Transactions, Related [mwestment Income and Operating Expanses (continued)
Operating eopenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

Transaction cosls, when incurmed, are recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The Master Fund finances their operaticns by issuing redesmable shares which are puttable at the holder's option and
antittes the holder to a proporfional stake In the respeciive Sub-Trusl's nel assets. Tha Sub-Trust holds redeemable
shares in s Masbar Fund.

The Sub-Trust's maximum axposure to loss from its Inlerests In the Master Fund Iz aqual to the total falr value of is.
imvestments in the Master Fund,

Once the Sub-Trusl has disposed of its shares in the Master Fund the Sub-Trust ceases to be exposed o any risk from
that Master Fund.

As at 30 Seplember 2023 and 30 September 2022, the net asset value of the Master Fund was AUD 843,572,861 and
AUD 710.205,307, respactivaly.

&) Financial Aasots and Financial Liabilities at Fair Valua through Profit or Losa
i Classification

Tha Sub-Trust dassifies ils mvastments based on both the Sub-Trust's business model for managing those financial
assots and the contractual cash fiow charactonstics of the financial assats. The portfclio of financial assets is managed
and parfermance Is evaluaied on a falr value basls. The Sub-Trust Is primarily focusad on falr value Information and
usas that information to assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions. The Sub-Trust has not taken the option
1o irmevocably designate any equity securities as fair value through other comprehensive income. The contractual cash
ficws of the Sub-Trust's debt securities are solely principal and inleresl, however, these securiies are neither held
for the purpose of collecting contrectual cash flows nor held both for collecting contrachual cash fiows and for sale,
The collection of contractual cash flows i only incidental o achieving the Sub-Trusl's business modal's objactive.
Consaquantly, all invesimants are measured at falr value through profit or loss.

I Recognition and Denecognition

The Sub-Trust recognizes financlal assets and financla! liabilites on the date it becomes parly lo the contractual
provisions of the investment, Purchases and sales of financial assets and finandial liabilities are recognized using trade
dale accounting. From trade date, any gaing and losses arising from changes in fair valua of the financial assets or
financial labliities ara recorded In the Statermants of Comprahansive [noome.

Financial assets are derecognized when tha to receiva cash flows from the investments have expired or tha Sub-
Trust has transferrad substantially all risks rewards of ownerzhip.

i Fair Valve Magsuramen{ Principles

Under IFRS 9, classification and measuramant of debl assets will ba drivan by the antity's business model for managing
the financlal assats and the contractual cash flow charactedistics of the financlal assats. A debt iInstrurmant |s rmeasured
at amortized cost if the objective of the business modal |s io hold the financials asset for the collection of the contractsal
cash flows and the contractual cash fiows under the instrument solely represents payments of principal and intsrest

{8PPF).

A debt instrument is measured at fair value through comprehensive incoma if the objective of the business model s
o held the financial assat both to collect contractual cash ficws from SPP and to sall. All other dabt Instrumants must

be recognized at falr valua through profit of loss. An entity may however, at Inlfial recognition, Irevocably deslgnate
a financial asset as measurad at fair valus through profit or loss if doing 8o eliminatas or significanty reduces a
rsasurement or recogniten inconskslency.

Derivative and equity instruments are measured alfaJrWueummmﬁtwmmm for equity instruments not
held for tracing, an imevocable option ks taken to measure al fair value through other comprehensive income.
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(G5 Australla Hybrid Securtties Fund
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For _H:u Year I_Emlul 30 3""“"“.“." 2023

LR Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles {continuad]
=) Finaneial Assasts and Financial Liabiliies at Fair Valua through Profit or Losa (eontinued)
i Fair Value Messuromen! Principles (continued)

Under IFRS @ the Sub-Trusl's Investmant portfollo continuas to ba inltlally recorded al thelr transaction price and then
maasured at fair value subsequant to initial recognition. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets or financial llablittes at falr values through profit or loss' category are presented (n the Statements of

Comprehensive ncome in the pericd in which they arss.

Financial assets dassified as receivables are carried al amortized cosl, if any. Financial liabiliies, other than those
at fair valua through profit or loss, are measured at amortized cosl. Financial Bakilites arising from redesmable Units.
issund by the Sub-Trust are camed at the redemption amount representing the Unitholders’ rght 1o a residual amount
of the Sub-Trust's Net Asssts Atiributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units ("Nel Assets™).

Tha fair valua of all sscuritias and darvatives |z determinad acconding to the following policles,

(Wi}  Dabf Securfies

Dabt socuriies, comprising corporate debl, are valued on the basis of dealer supplied guotations or by using a third
party pricing sarvico. When a dobl securily has boon identifiod as being in default, the interest acorual on the defauliod
sacurity may ba stopped and, upon confirmation from relevant parties, the amount receivable may be writlen off,

{Wi2)  Exchange Listed Assets and Liabiities

The fair value of exchange traded financial invesiments, comprising common stock and shori-term investments, is
based upon quoted market prices at tha period end date without any deduction for estimated future traneaction costs,

{3) Monay Markel Investments
Money market investments ane valued al amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

(i) Shares In Collsctive Investment Schemes

Tha falr value of Investrmants In cpen-anded imvastment funds, Including collsciva Invastmant schamas, 5 based
upon the officlal published Met Assat Valus ("MAV) par share as supplied by the adminksirative agent of the funds in
accordance with valuation policy of appiicable funds as outiined In the respactive Offering Memorandum.,

A siruciured entity is an enlity thal has been designed so Lhat voling or similar dghts are not the dominant factor in
deciding whe controls the enlity. such &s when any voting rights relate lo adminisirative tasks only and the relevant
aclivities are direcled by means of contractual arrangements. A structured entity cften has some or all of the following
fastures or atiributes; {a) resiricied activities, (b) & namow and well-dafined objective, such as o provida investment
opperunities for inveslors by pessing on risks and rewards associated with the assets of the structured enfity to
Investors, (c) Insuficiant aquity to parmilt the structured antity to finance s acthities without subordinated financial
suppart and (d) financing in the farm of multiple contractually linked instruments o Investors that create concentrations.
of credit or other risks (tranches).

{ii5)  Derivatives

A darvativa is an instrument whosa fair value is derived from an undarlying instrumant, index referanca rate or a
cambination of these factors. Darfvative Instrumants may ba privately negotiatad contracts which &re often refermed to
&% over the counter ("OTC") darvalives or they may be liled and raded on an exchange. Dervative conlracts may
imvoive futune commiétments to purchase or sell finandal instruments or commoditiea al specified terms on a specified
date, or fo exchange interest paymeant streams or curmencies basad on a notional or contraciual amount.

Darivative contracts ane steted at fair value and recognized as finandal assets and Rnancial Eabities on the Stalemants
of Financial Position. Gains and losses resulting from the change in tha fair value e reflecisd on the Statemants of
Comprohansive Incoma as a compoanont of chango in unrealized gain/loss). Realired gains or lossos ar recordad on
tarmination or from pericdic cash flow paymants.

iT
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33 Australla Hybrid Securtties Fund
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For _H:u Year I_Emlud 30 hptpm_her 2023

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (continued)
(¢)  Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitiea at Fair Valua through Profit or Loss (continued)
] Fair Value Messurement Principles (cantinued)
(W5)  Dervatives fcontinued)
fiisa) Forward Foreign Cumency Contracts

In & forward fongign cumency contract, the Sub-Trust agrees to recaive ar deliver a fixed guantity of one curmancy for
anothar, at a pre-determined prica at a future date. Purchases and salas of forward fareign currency confracts having
the same nctional value, settiement date, counterparty and right to settie nat are generally offset (which result in a net
foreign cumency position of zero with the counlerparty) and any realized gains or losses ane recognized on rade dale.

Forward foreign curmency contracts are valued at the mid forward rate by thind party pricing senvice providers.

(g  AF Secunties and Dervatives

If a quoted market prica |z not avallabls from a third party pricing servics or a dealer, or a guotation Is balleved
to b materally inaccurata, the fair value of the imvestment is determined by using valuation technigues. Valustion
techniques indude the use of recent markel transactions, reference to the curment fair value of another inveatment that
5 substantally the same, discountad cash flow analyses or any other techniques that provides a reliable estimate of
prices obtmined in aciual market transactions,

Such socurities and derivatives shall bo valued at thair probablo realization value as doetormined by a Valuer, The Valuar
during tha yaars anded 30 Saptambar 2023 and 30 Saptembar 2022 was Goldman Sache & Co. LLC and tha valuaton
function was parformad by Geldman Sachs Asset Managamant Division Controllars (AMD Controliars).

Tha investments have baen valued In accordance with ganarally accepted accounting principles that require the use
of certain estimates and assumptions. Although these estimates and assumplions are based on the best available
infarmaticn, actual results could be materially different from these estimates.

Thers were no sacurities whare the Valuer was usad lo detenmine fair value during the years ended 30 September 2023
and 30 September 2022,

I Transfers batwaen levels of the falr value herarchy

Tranafers between levels of the fair value hierarchy, if any, are deemed to have occumed at the beginning of the:
reporting year.

(d)  Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents {short term, highly Bgquld Investrmants that ane readlly convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant sk of changes in value), including time deposils and certificates of deposit,
are valued at amortized cogt, which approximates fair value.

Certificates of deposit and ime deposils are reclassified from financial assels at fair value through peofit or loss to cash
and cash equivalents as they aro short term, highly Bquid, radily convertible o known amounts of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of changas in value.

Total Gash

Cash  and Cash

Cash  Equivalonts Eguivalonts

AUD AUD AUD

30-Bep-2023 - 148B1BB1 14,881,881
30-Bep-2022 18,084 27368438 27,387,500
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(G5 Australla Hybrid Securtties Fund
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the Year I_Emlnd 30 September 2023

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles {continuad]
(=) Duae fromfto Brokers

Due fromfio brokers consists primarily of cash collaleral (for dervative contracts} and margin amounts receivable from/
payable lo the Sub-Trusl's cleanng brokers and varous counterparties. Collateral amounts due fromfito broker balances
are valued &t cost The amounts receivable from and payable lo brokers represents cash seitled In the Sub-Trust's.
broker accounts. These balances are related o cash held as collateral or margin on swaps and fulures with dearing
enuntarparties, futures margin cash receivablaipayabla 1o the Sub-Trust's futures claaring merchants, and cantrally
cleared swaps mangin cash recalvabla/payable o the Sub-Trust's centrally deared swaps claaring marchants.

Thesa amounts are recognized meﬁimm“mwm amaortized cosl. The Sub-Trust's
due from brokers balances ane subject to the expected cradit loss modal within IFRS 9. Mo balances are considered
impaired and no amounts have been written off in the pedod.

Gollateral amounts and margin amounts included in due from/to brokers are disclosed in the Statements of Financial
Position a6 at 30 September 2023 and 30 Septsmber 2022, respactively,

i Foralgn Currency Translstion

Transactions in foreign cumencies are translaled al the forelgn cumency exchange rale in effect al the date of the
transaction. Assats and |lablBtes of the Sub-Trust denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
curmency of the Sub-Trust el the forelgn cumency exchange rake in effect al the year end date.

Forsign curmsncy axchange differances ansing on translation and realized gaing and losses on disposals or satiiamants
of assats and llabilites are recognized in the Statements of Comprahensive Income. Foraign cumency sxchange gains.
or losses relating to investmants al fakr value through profit or loas and all other foreign cumancy ecchanga gains or
kcasas relating to monetary hems, Including cash, ars reflected In the net realized galn/loss) on Investments or net
change in unrealized gaini{loss) on investments in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

{g) Redeemable Units
Al radeamable participating Units lssued by the Sub-Trust provides the Unithobders with the right to redesam for cash at
the value proportionate to the Unitholder's share in the Sub-Trust's net assats on the redemption dats. [n accordance
with IAS 32 "Financial Instruments: Presentation”, such Units have been dassified as a financkal llability at the value of

the redemption amount in the Statemenis of Financial Position. The Sub-Trust is contractually obfiged to redeem Units:
in accordance with the Offering Memorandwm,

(h)  Distributions Payable to Holders of Redesmable Units

Distributiona/Dividends payable on tha redesmabla participating Units are recognized in the Statemants of
Comprehenaive [hoome as Finance Cosla,

4, Financlal Asssts and Financlal Liabliities at Falr Value through Profit or Loss

Tha thires vels of the falr value hlerarchy undar the amendmant t IFRS 13 "Falr Valus Maasuramant” ahe described
bavlcrwrz

Level 1 = Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricled assels or liabilities;

Level 2 — Quoted prices in markets that are not active or financial instruments for which significant inputs are cbservabile
{including bul not limited to quoted prices for similar securities, interest rales, foreign axchange rates, volatility and credit
apraads), sithar direclly or indirsctly. This may include tha Valuor's assumpbons in detormining fair valuo moasurdmont;

Level 3 — Pricas or valuations that require significant unobservable Inputs (Including the Valuer's assumptions in
datarmining fair value measuramant).
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Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the Year Ended 30 hphm_her 2023

Financlal Asssts and Financlal Lisbl|ides at Falr Value through Profit or Loss {continued)

Tha lavel in the fair value hiararchy within which the fair value measurament s categodized in its endiraty shall be
daterminaed on the basls of the lowest level Input that |s significant to the falr value measursment In s entirety. Far
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirsty. If a fair
value measuremenl uses chservable inpuls that require significant adjustment based on unobserable inputs, that
measurement Is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input lo the fair value measurement
in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or Bability.

As gt 30 Septomber 2023 and 30 Seplamber 2022, the financial sesels ot feir value through profit or loss comtain
Invasimonts in undorying funds that have beon fair valued In Boccordance with the policies set out above. The shanss of
the undarlying funds are not publicly fraded; redemplions can only be made by the Sub-Trust on the redemption dates.
and are subject to tha required notica paricds spacified in tha Offaring Mamorandum. As & result, the camying valua of
underying funds may not be indicative of the value uiimalely realized on redemption.

The fair value of the invesiments in the underlying funds is primarily based on the latest available redemption price:
as reported by the administrator of the undedying funds. The Sub-Trust may meke adjustmenis to the value based on
considerations such as; liquidity of the Sub-Trust’s holding in the underying funds or thefr underlying investments, the
value date of the NAY provided and any restrictions on redemplions.

Tha following tablas show financlal assate and financial llabliities recagnized al falr valua, analyzad batwean the thres
lovels described praviously:

30-Sep-2033
F&mnrmmm
e _ —level 2AUD _ Lewsl SAUD _ TetalAUD
Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss
Innvestrrnd Fund 643,572,861 - - B43,572 881
___ Forward Fereign Currency Contracts — — 34,542
B3 572 BE 34543 B3 507 408
Financial Liabiiitiss moasured =t fair valus
30-Bep-2023
Fair vilus measursment at 30-Sep-2023
o _ _ Lowal 1 AUD Level 2 AUD Level 3 ALD Total ALID
Finangigd liabilites ot fair value through profit or loss
Forward Foreign Currancy Contracts —_ 1,400,364 —_ 1,400, 364
— Tolal = 1,400,364 = 1,400,354

Financial Azssts messursd st fair valus

30-Bep-2022
Falr valus mansurement at 30-Sep-2022

Lowpl LAVE  _ Lgepl 2800  __Lopldn.  __ Told D

Financial assgts at fair valua through profit or loss

Irvesitrment Fund 10,205,307 - - 710,205,307

Forward Forelgn Currency Contracts — 24,8938 88T —_ 24 538 S8T
—Tolal 740,206,307 = Ta5 1420
Financial Liabiiities mossured ot fair value
30-Bap-2022

Falr value measurement at 30-Sep-2022

- e - —Llovel TAUD = Level2AUD = Lovel JAUD  Totsl ALD
Financial llabiites ot falr valus through profit o loss

Forward Fonsign Currency Contracts — 214,318 — 8214, 38
- = -

During this years ended 30 Saplembar 2023 and 30 Saptambar 2022, thare wans no transfers between Level 1, Laval 2
and Leval 3 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and financial liabilities which were recorded at Tair value.
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Financlal Asssts and Financlal Lisbllites at Falr Value through Profit or Loas |continusd)
There wars no sacurities levalad al Level 2 al 30 Seplaember 2023 and 30 Septembar 2022,

Financlal Asssts and Financlal Llabliifes not carried at falr value but for which falr value |s disclosed

Cash end cash equivalents and bank overdraft, if any, are classified s Level 1. All other assels and liabilities not
measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed are dassified as Level 2, Refer to the Statements of Financial
Position for a breakdown of assets and Eabilities and to Note 3{c) for a description of the valuation techniques.

Tha puttable value of redeamabls participaing Units classified as a financial liabifty is calculated based on the net
diffarence betwean total assafs and all other llablies of the Sub-Trust in accordance with the Sub-Trust's Offering
Memorandum. These Units ans not traded on an active market. A demand feature is attached o these Units, as they
are redeemable at the holders’ option and can be pul back to the Sub-Trust at any dealing date for cash equal to
proportionale Units of the Sub-Trust's NAV attributable to the Units class. The fair value is based on the amount payable
on gemand, discounted from the first date thal the amount could be required o ba paid, The impact of discounting
in this instancs is not matedal, As such, Lavel 2 s deemad to ba the most appropriats categorzation for Net Assats
Adiributable to Holders of Redeemable Paricipating Units.

OfTeatting Filnanclal Asasts and Financlal Llablilties
Deadvatives

In order to battar dafine tts contractual rights and to sacume rights that will help the Sub-Trust mitigate ks counterparty
risk, the Sub-Trust may enter into an intemational Swaps and Desvatives Assodation, Inc. Master Agreement (ISDA
Masier Agreement”) or similar agreemenis with 8 derivative contract counterparties. An ISDA Master Agreement
is & bilateral agresment betwean the Sub-Trust and a counterparty that govems OTC dervatives, including forslgn
exchange contracts, and typically containg, among other things, collateral posting terms and netting provisions in the
aevant of @ dafaull and/or tarmination event, Tha provisions of tha ISDA Master Agreamant typically parmit a single
it payment in the evant of a default (close-out neting) or similar event, induding the bankruptey or insalvancy of the
counterparty.

Collateral and margin requirements differ between exchange traded derivetves and OTC derivatives. Margin
requirements are established by the broker or clearing house for exchange-traded and centrally cleared denvatives
{financial fulures contracts, options and centrally deared swaps) pursuant to the goveming agreements for those
instrument types. Brokers can ssk for margin in excass of the minimum in certain circumetances. Collatoral terms ang

for OTC derhvatives (foredgn cumency exchange contracts, oplions and cerdain swaps). For dedivatives
traded under an IS0A Master Agreement, the callateral requirements are typlcally calculated by netfing the mark-to-
market amount for sach transaction under such agreament and comparing that amount to the valua of any collateral
curmantty pledged by the Sub-Trust and the counterparty. Addionally, the Sub-Tnust may be required to post addiional
collateral to the counterparty in the form of initial margin, the terms of which would be cutlined in the confimation of
the OTC transaction.

For financial reporling purposes, cash collateral that hes been pladged lo cover obligations of the Sub-Trus! and cash
collateral recoived from the countarparty, If any, is reported separatoly on the Statements of Finandal Position as dug
fromidue to broker. Nen-cash collateral pladged by the Sub-Trust, if any, Is notad in the Schedules of Investmants,
Ganarally, the amount of collateral due from or to a counterparty must exceed a minimum transfer amount threshold
before a transfer is required to be made. To the extent amounts due to the Sub-Trust from its counlerparties are not
fully collateralized, contraciually or otherwise, the Sub-Trust bears the risk of loss from counterparty nonperformancs.
The Sub-Trust attempts o mitigate coumerparty sk by only entering into agreements with counterparties that it believes
o be of good standing and by monitoring the financial stebility of those counlerparties.

Mu:lﬂmaly mmumm liabiliies and the offsatting of collateral pledged or received are based on

provisions in the ISDA Master Agreament or similar agreemants. However, in the event of a
mnwhmﬂamm a courl could determing that such rights are not enforceable dus to restrictions
or prohibitions agains! the right of satoff that may be imposad due to & particular jurisdiction's bankrupicy or insclvency
laws,

The Sub-Trusl's net exposure o dervative instruments was immalerial as & was below 1% as at 30 Seplember 2023,

The following table sel forth the Sub-Trust's net exposure for OTC dervative instruments thal are subject to enforceable
magter natting arangemants or similar egreemants at the year 30 Septomber 2022,

3
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33 Australla Hybrid Securtties Fund
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For _thu Year I_Emlud 30 hplgam_hqr 2023

Offsetting Financlal Assets and Financlal Liablilties (continued)
Darivativas {continvad)

30-Bep-202
Durtvative Assats” Drrtratvn Lisk Miss™
Nut Derbrutbrn  Collwinrad
Axnatn [Racatved) Nt
party Fi Forsards [Lishiliten)  Pladged™  Amount™
Avsriraiis £ N Tsaland Bariing
Geup L 13,128 {em, 58] [asm.am) 80,000 (Te,0t)
BMP Pl B4 2812 - Tma - E 0]
(CHbani NA 1,808 - 1,688 - 1.8
Craidt Buiams |tnmeson = (21.401] ) = 1,401)
HEBC Bark PLC TRBE oL {ZL148) - [22. 1438y
gy Sasviay 12887414 A5 B0H] BIZIES RSN 1IHEE
Ryl Bk of Canada nam (78,355} 5,004 - [85,024)
Fevynd Buarir of Berstiard - {BEA B4 (358,884} ErT) [t
B! Shirtened Bick 503 el [280,831) L L L R
uES A LR (25T 265) A = 35, 318)
Wewtpu: Barkdny Corp 48,080 {104,290} {88,170} = [B8.170)
Total 000 T el ] LTSN (LNANE LEMSEY
= Grows smounts mvalable for oifest but not neftied in e Sl of Firancial Powt)

= ot armoLnt represants the net smount dus (i) from courterpacty in s event of & defaul bassd o the confrotusl ssl-off rights under B sgresessnt. Net
B eciced Ay cvae-coletaralned amounts.

Taxation

There are at present no corporation, income. wlﬂ prefits or other taxes in the Cayman lslsnds which would

Inthum:m:h of the Sub- mmmmmhwmmhminmmmlﬂm
The has applied wmmmmmmwwummMMmumh
accordence with Section 81 of the Trusts Law (as amended) that for a perod of 50 years from the date of the creation
of the Master Trusl no law which |s theraafier anactad in the Cayman lslands Imposing any taxes or duly to be levied
on Income o on capital assets, galns or appreclation of any tax In tha natura of estats duty or inharftanca tax shall
.appl_.rt:-hpmpu'ty prisad In of any Income arsing under the Sub-Trust or to the Trustes or Unitholders thereof
in respect of any such property or income; provided that a Unitholder who is at any time resident or domiciled in the
Cayman lslands (other than any objsct of a chanilable (rusl or power of &n exempted or ordinary nan-resident compary
Incorporated in the Cayman lslands) shall be liable in and in respect of such time to all and any tex and duty as If
guch undartaking had never bean given and nothing in the relevant section of the Trusts Law shall be construed as
xampling any siich parsen resldent or domicllad In the Islands from any kaw Imposlng any tax of duty refamed o In
the Trusts Law.

The Sub-Trust Invests In securities |ssued by entities which ane domicibed In countries othar than the Cayman Islands.
Many of thesea foreign countries have tax laws which indicale that capital gains laxes may be applicable to non residents,
such as the Sub-TrusL Typically, these capital gains laxes ane required 1o be determined on a self assessmen! basis
and, therefors, such taxes may nol be deducled by the Sub-Trust's brokors on a “withholding™ basis.

In accordance with LAS 12 - Incoma Taxes, the Sub-Trust is requined Io recognize & tax liability when & is probable that
the tax laws of forsign couniries mquine a tax Eability to ba assaased on the Sub-Trust's capital gains sourced from
such forelgn country, assuming the relevant taxing authortias have full knowladge of all the facts and circumstancas,

The tax liability & then measured at the ameunt expactad 1o be paid 1o the relevant taxation authodities using the tax
ks and rates thal have been enacted or substartively enacted by the end of the reporting pariod. There is somatimes
uncertainty about the way enacted lax aw is appled o offshore investment funds. This creates uncerainty about
whether or not a tax Bability will utimately be pad by the Sub-Trust. Therefore wihen measuring any uncerain tax
liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and drcumslances evailable at the time which could influence:
the likelihood of paymeant, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

For the years ended 30 Septembar 2023 and 30 Seplember 2022, the Sub-Trust has measurad uncertaln tax Eabliities.
and ralated interast and panalties with respact to foreign capital gains taxes at nil. While this represants managamant's
best estimate there remains a risk that foreign tax authorities will attempl Lo collect taxes on capital gaine eamed by the
Sub-Trust. This could happen without giving any pricr waming, possibly on a refrospective basis, and could result in a
substantial loss to the Sub-Trust.
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T Significant Agresments and Related Partes
{a) Investmant Management and Advisors Foa

Under the terma of the Management Agresment, the Investment Manager receives, from the assets of the Sub-Trust,
a quartery fee accruing daeily and calevlated and paid on a quarledy basis in errears equal to 0.80%

2
z
g
¥

mmnaamdwﬂmmwﬂummum Indudlng affillates of tha Invesimant

Manager, as may be agreed o by the Invesiment . Trustes and the applicable Unitholder. The Investment
rmanagement fees are disclased in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the vears ended 30 September 2023
and 30 Seplember 2022, reapectively.

The Sub-Trust invesls in an undedying fund which also may pay imssiment manegament foes to the imvestmont
advisor who |8 & related party to Yamra, Tha Sub-Trust indireclly baarm the sxpensas paid by the undarlying fund, Tha
table below sets forth the fee rate for the undedying fund and Is as follows:

Annusl Fas
Undaddylng Fund Rale %
_Aumiralia Enhanced incoma Fund I, Class 10 (Acc), AUD shans ni
b} Manager Fee
Mitzubishl UFJ Invasior Services & Banking (Luxermbourg) S.A. ("MIBL" or tha "Manager™) sarvas as the Manager of
the Sub-Trust.

MIBL has been authorized as a commarcial bank and is regulated in the Grand Duchy of Luxemboung by the Commission
de Survelllance du Secteur Financier ("CSSF"). It was incorporated in Luxembourg as a société ananyme on 11 April
1674 as a majority-owned subeldiary of The Bank of Tokyo, Lid.

The Manager recaives, from the assels of the Sub-Trust, a fee acoruing daly and paid on a quartedy basis in armaars.
agual to 0.05% of the Sub-Trust's averags NAV. The manage: fees for tha years snded 30 Saptembar 2023 and 30
Septembar 2022, are disclosad In the Statements of Comprehensive Income, respectively.

ie) Administration and Transfer Agenti Fes

Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. ("BEH") ls the Sub-Trust's Administrator and Transfer Agenl. The Administrator and
Transfer Agent perform cerain day-io-day adminksirative tasks on behalf of the Sub-Trest, including maintenance of the
Sub-Trust's books and reconds, caiculation of the NAV and paymants of the Sub-Trust's expanses.

BEH Is pald solaly out of the assels of the Sub-Trust Including asset-based, safekeeplng, transaction, sanvicing and
other fees as may be agreed upon from time to tme with the Investmant Manager, Additionally, at menth and, the
securities for the Sub-Trus! are segregated based on the transaction type and a fee rate is appied. The Sub-Trust will
pay such fess monthly in amears.

Annual adminisiration undt'amfarmﬂdmmmmwufmﬂl end average net assets will be assassed al the
Bub-Trest lavel, based on the following schedula

Assots up to LED 500 milllon 4.0 bps
Agsots botessan LISD 500 million = LISD 1 billon 3.0 bos
Assots above USD 1 bllion 2.5 bps

mmmmmn-nmmmum

The sdministration and transfer agont fees are disdosed in the Stetements of Comprehansive Income for the years:
ended 30 Seplember 2023 and 30 Septernber 2022, respectively,
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T Significant Agresments and Related Partles {continued)

(4]  Distribution Fes

The Manager may, from time to time, appoint one or more entities as distributor (the “Japanese Distributors® or the
“Digtributers™) of the Sub-Trust in Jagan.

The Japaness Distribulors or Distributors receives a fes, accruing daily and paid on a quartedy basis in amears, egqusl
to 0.80% of the Sub-Trust's averaga NAY, adjusted to reflect any subscriptions, redemptions or distributions during the
applicabla calendar quarter,

The distribution fees are disclosed In tha Stalemenis of Comprehensive Incoms for the years endad 30 Saptember
2023 and 30 Seplember 2022, respectively.

{a) Trustes Fea

Brown Brothers Harmiman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited acts as the Trusios for the Sub-Trust. The Trustes s
rospongibla for tha overall suparvision of the Sub-Trusl's assoels, pursuant to tha terms of the Declaration of Trust. The
Sub-Trust will pay such feas, monthly In amears, to the Trustes equal to 0.01% of the average MAV.

Tha trustes fess are disclosed in the Statements of Comprahensive Incoma for the years anded 30 Seplember 2023
and 30 September 2022, respectively.

) Custodlan Fee

The Trustea has delegated tha responsiblilty for custody of the Sub-Trust's assets to BEH. The custodian carries out the
usual dities regarding cuslody, cash and securities depaosits, without any restriction. Fees are charged on safekeeping
of securities on a monthly basis. At month end, the securities held by the Sub-Trust are segragated basad on the
mwntmgh.muanmmwmhmmmmw:ﬁemhwmmmw

of origin.
The custodian fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehansive Income for the years ended 30 September 2023
and 30 Seplember 2022, rosoectvaly.

{a) Agent Company Fea
Goldman Sachs Assel Managemenl Co., Lid. acts as ihe Agenl Company in Japan of the Sub-Trust The Agent

Company recelves a fee, accruing dally and pald on a guarterly basis in amears, equal o 0.03% of the Sub-Trust's
avarage NAV,

Tha agont company feas ane disclosad in the Statomants of Comprohansiva Incoma for tho yoars onded 30 Soptambor
2022 5

8. Radssmabie Participating Units
Classea Issue Price Minlmum Initisl Subscription
ALD AUD 10 ALD 100
JPY (Hedged) JPY 10,000 JPY 10,000
usoD uso 10 UsD 100
S0 (Hedged) Ush 10 S0 100

Units will ba offared for sale on sach business day al the MAY per Unit of the applicable dass,

Unlits ara redesmable at the option of tha Unitholder upen notica given In accordancs with tha terma of tha Offaring
Memorandum. Units will ba redesmed at tha NAV par Unit of the applicable Class prevalling as of closa of buslness on
the applicable Redemption Date, provided that the Investment Manager may, in its sole discretion, reduce such amount
by any expenses incurred in conneciion with such redemption.

Units of the Master Fund ere also redeemable at the option of the Unithclder on demand upon nolice given in accordance:
with the lerms of the Cffadng Memorandum.
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Redsamable Particlpating Unlts (continued)

As of 30 Saplamber 2023 thare ara five Unitholders, one of which ie & related party to tha Manager. As of 20 Saptembar
2022 thera are slx Unithclders, two of which s a relsted party to tha Manager.

The following summarizes the activity in the Sub-Trust's Units,

Number of Units
Class JFY Clasa UBD
__ Cluss AUD [Hadged) Class USD

Balunce 30 Buplembar 2021 57,288,904 850,048 8,775,870 30,720,162
SubseripSons of redeematia participatng Unis 8,754,000 102,750 1.880,828 410482
Rdemetions of mdesrmabio perbtipstng Unis (21,624 073} (321,564) {15,158 888}
Balsnce 30 Septomber 42,089 240 521,243 8,124 354 30,171,938
Bubscripens of redeamabls participateg Unks 340,10 112,834 13,178
Risclinmtaoes of mckulmnhia parbopet o) Lni (8,558, f00) {133021) (2,287,514} (4,035, 378)
Balenoa 30 Baplombar MY 37,034 543 501,158 8,037, 733 1T AT2,T36

MAV per Unit

Tha considaration received or paid for redeemable parficipating Units issued or re-purchased respactively ks baged on
the value of the Sub-Trust's net assets value per redesmalle participating Uinits at the dats of the trarsaction,

The NAY and NAY per Unlt for each Unit class outstanding for the Sub-Trust are as foliows:

30-Sep-2023 30-Sep-2022

Unit Class Net Asast Vilus NAY Par Unit Net Asast Valus MHAY PorUni

ALID Class AUD 288081512 AUD 7778122 AUD  322,738488 ALD  7.685879

JPY Class (Hedged) AJD 42986672  JPYBZ1S927807 AUD 48872198  JPY B,356.511635

LUSD Glass AUD 58246437 USD 4646174 ALUD 58,3p6604 USD 4621410

USD Clas [Hedgad) AUD  D8SB4BERS  USD 9755134 AUD 298240871  USD  5.505029
Distributions

mwmmmmmummumwmqmmmmmuumwm
ended 30 September 2023 and 30 Seplember 2022 are disclosed in the Stalements of Comprehensive Income when
Mel Assets Altribulable Holders of Redeemable Participating Unils are classified as a financial liability, Distributions
to Unitholders reduce the Sub-Trust's NAV per Unil withoeut any comesponding change in the number of Units. par
Unitholder. This resulis in a Unitholder's overall investment In the Sub-Trust baing reduced. In addition, any distributions
paid during a perod which are In axcass of the Sub-Trust's accumuiated nal incomal{loss) from operations results in a
paron of the distributions balng a retum of caplial.

Financlal Investments and Assoclated Risks

The Sub-Trust's invasting activities exposa i to various types of risks that are associalad with tha financial investmants
and markets In which the underlying Master Fund invests. These may ba both darivative and non-dervalive financial
Investmants, The Sub-Trusts investment portfolio s comprisad of a sole underdying fund and darivative investmants.
8t the pariod end. The Trustes has sppointed the Investment Advisors to manage the rsks of the Sub-Trust. The
significant types of financial risks which the Sub-Trust is exposed to are market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The
Offering Memorandum provides details of these and other types of risk some of which are additional to that information
prevdded in these financel stabsfmants.

Assel allocation is delarmined by the Sub-Trusl's Investment Advisors who manage the allocation of assels to achigve
the investment objective as detailed in Nols 2, Achievamant of the invesimant objective invalves taking risks, Tha
Irvastment Advisors axerclsa judgment based on analysis, resaarch and risk managamant techniquas whan making
investment decisions, Divergence from the benchmark and/or the target assed allocation and the composition of the
portfolio is monitored in accordance with the Sub-Trust's rizk management policy.
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Financlal Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)

The axistence of mulliple investmant vehicles potentially investing in the samea undarlying fund, presants cartain unique
raks fo Invesiors, The Sub-Trust may be materally affected by the actions of ancther entity Invasting In the same
undertying fund. For example, if another Unitholder of the underying fund redesms some or all of its intanests, the Sub-
Trusl, may expesence higher pro rata operaling expenses, thereby producing lower retums. Similary, the underying
mmmdeMhmmmmmmm&uinmmm
The underiying fund may restrict its investment activites or be preciuded from investing in certain instruments due to
regulatory restrictions on certain of its direct or indirect investors or othenwisa, which may have an adverse effect on the
parformance of the undarlying fund, and, in fum, the Sub-Trust.

Tha risk managemant poilcias employad In ralation to the Sub-Trust are detallad balow:

Tha potential for changes in the fair value of the Sub-Trust's investmeant portfolio is refermed o as market risk, Commonly
usad categories of marked risk include cumency risk, intarest rate risk and other price risk

. Curmrency risk may resull from exposures ko changes In spot prices, forward prices and volatiies of currancy
rates.

o] Intarest rate dgk may result from exposunes to changes in the lovel, slope and curvature of the verdous yield
curvas, the volatility of inlerest rates, mortgege prepaymeont speads and credit sproads.

- Oher price rigk ia the risk that the value of an investment will fluchuate as a result of changes in market prices
other than thase anging from curmancy risk or interest rote rsk and may msult from exposures to changes in
the prices and volatilites of individual equities, equity baskels, equity Indices, and commeodites.

The market risk strategy is driven by the Sub-Trust's investment risk and retum objectives.

Market rigk ia managed through the epplication of risk budgeting principles. The Investment Adviscrs determine an
appropriate risk target, commonly referred to as Tracking Emor, employing & risk budgeting framework.

A Markot Risk Analysls Group ol Goldman Sachs ("IMD MRA") iz responsible for indopendoantly moniloring, analyzing
and raporting tha markat daks taken by the invastmant Advisors, IMD MRA usas a numbar of riak matrics to monitor the:
markat rigks including monitoring sensitivities, and Tracking Ermor.

Datalls of the Sub-Trust's Invastmant portfolio st the reporting date are discloasd In the Schadulas of Investments. All
Individual collective investment schames and derivative investments are disdosed saparataly.

{n Cumency Risk

Each currency class of the Sub-Trust will sask o hedge against each relevant currancy (with the excaption of the USD
class which Is discuzsad furthar balow). This |s refemad to as Glass Hedging. Moreover, whare a Unitholdar invests in
Units of a Hedged Class that are hedged inlo a class cummency ather than the hofme curmency of the Unithalder's own
jurisdiction, such Unithobder will be exposed to the significan! risk thal the class cumency will depreciate against such
home currency.

Hedging with the relevant class curmency & not necessarily complels and each currency class may be subject o
curmency axchange fluctuation of the cumency in which the Units have been issued.

The assels HN&&)—TM!M'!WWMNJD tha value of tha USD Class will fluctuata in lina with tha USD/
AUD axchangs rate ragardlass of wmuﬂunum

In principle, each class of the Sub-Trust is to the curmancy of that dass with the exception of the USD class.
Hedging gaina and losses, with respact to hedging activity undertaken by the Sub-Trust on behalf of 8 Currency Class,
are allocatad sclaly 1o thal reapactive cumency class.
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Financlal Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)
Market Risk (continued)
m Cumancy Risk (continuead)

The Sub-Trust may Invest In finandal Investments and enter into transactions denominated In cumancles other than
their functional cumency. Consaguenty, the Sub-Trust may be exposad to risks that the axchangs rate of their functional
currency ralativa o other foralgn curmenclas may change In a manner that has an adverss effact on the valua of that
partion of the Sub-Trust's assels or llabil’ies denominated in curencles olher than it functional currency. Please refer
to the Schedules of Investments of the Sub-Trust which details imvestments in cumencies other than its functional
currency. Al 30 Saplember 2023 and 30 Seplember 2022, substantially all non-ALD investments were hedged to the
AUD, This is refarrad o as Porifiolio Hedging.

Whan an Investor invests into a Unit class which is in a differant cumancy to tha base cumancy of the Sub-Trust inwhich
It Invasts, the currency rak of the investor will ba different to the curency ek of tha Sub-Trust,

Tha Sub-Trust had no significant cumancy risk exposure at 30 September 2023 and 30 Septambar 2022,

Although not effacting total Sub-Trust net income, the value of the USD class will fluctuate in line with USDVAUD
exchange rate. Therefore, a 15% appreciation/depreciation in the USD will impact the net assets of the respective USD
class by +/- 15% and will not have any Impact on the cther dasses.

The Sub-Trust had following curmancy concantrations, induding hedging, greater than +~-5% of NAY as al 30 September
2023 and 30 Saptambar 2022:

Currency 30-Bep-2023  30-Bep-2022
usoD 40.73% 40.67%
JBY 6.57% BATY

For the Master Fund, there were no cumency concentrations, including hedging, greater than +/-5% of NAV at 30
Seplember 2023 and 30 Seplember 2022,

{n Interest Rate Risk

The Sub-Trusl may invest in fixed income securities through it indirect exposure o the investments of the Master
Fund. Any changa to tha ralavant interast rates for paricular securties may result in the Investmant Advisors baing
unable o secune similar retums on the expiry of the contracts or tha sale of securitias. In addition, changes to pravailing
Interest rales or changes in expectations of future rates may resull in an increase or decrease in the value of the
gecurities hald. In genaral, if imterest rates rige, the value of the fixed income securities will decline. A deciing in interest
rates will in general have the cpposite effect,

Tha Sub-Trusl may imvest in instrumeanis in desired currencles at fixed, ficating and rero rales of interest through it
Indiract axposuns to the Invastmant of tha Master Fund.

Tha Sub-Trust had ro significant direct Interast rate risk axposure at 30 Septembar 2023 and 30 Septembar 2022,
however tha Sub-Trust did have indirect Interest rate exposura via the Master Fund's Investmant portfolio.
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Financlal Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)
Market Risk [continued)

()  Intersst Rats Risk (continued)

Tha Intarest rate profiie of the financlal assets and llablites of the Sub-Trust Is as follows:

At 30-Sop-2023
Mon Interest

. Uptotyssr  1- Sysars  OverSywars Bearing Total
Angats
Cash and cash sguialants 14,881 281 - - - 14,881 881
Fimancial assels hedd for trading andior

hedging - - - B43SOTADI  B43,607403

Recahabia for investments sokd x - & 1,336,365 1,336,965
Oher aspats - - - 1.8027.3718 1,527,378
Total Assets 14,981,881 - = BABETI 44 561,853,005
Liabilities

1.400,384 1,400,364

Paryable for investmonts purchased = - - 708,350 TOB, 380
Oher Eabilities - - - 4 600,855 4,500,855
Total Lisb/littes sxcluding nat ssssts
atiributable ta Unithalders i = i 6,708,690 8,700,809
At 30-Sep-2022
Mon Interest

cop Uptoiysar 1- Sysars  Over S ysars Baaring Totsl
Angols
Cash and cash equivaiants 27,368 438 e & 19,084 27,367,500

Financial assets hedd for trading and/or
T35 1204 TI5 4T

hedging
Recetvabia for Investmenis sokd - 2,068,387 2,085,387

Other assets - 2062,737 2,062,737
Total Azsata 27 368,438 T3 285,442 86,653,928
Llabilities

Financial Babilities hakd for trading andfor
hedging = - - 9,214,318 9214318
Payabla for Invastments purchassd - - - 11,248,818 11,248,819

Other Eabiliies = = = 10,843,738 10,842,738
Total Lisbliities axcluding net ssssts
atiributabls to Unitholdors — - - 40,307 875 40,307,875
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Financlal Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

()  Intersst Rats Risk (continued)

The Intarest prafila of the financlal assets and Rabllites of the Master Fund Is as follows:

At 30-5ap-2023
Mon [nterest
Uptiysar 1- Sysars Ower S years Bearing Total
Assols
Finsncial azssls hedd for trading and/or
hadging 455 468 B4T 74,885,205 73,525,040 24 B4D 0BS B28, 710,187
Total Assats 455 458,847 T4,885295 73,525,040 24,840,985 628,710,187
Af 30-8ap-2022
Mon Intersst
Uptaiysar 1- Syears Over S years Baaring Total
Aspels
Financial asssts hadd for trading andior
hadging 504,178,101 64,798,823 T8, 505,562 30,881,517 680,265,103
__Total Assets SO4179.401 4298023 78805562 30081517 680,285,103

(i)  Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the value of a financlal investment will flucluate as a result of changes in market prices,
other than those arising from curmency risk or interest rale risk whether caused by faciors specific 1o an individual
imvestment, its issuar or any factor affecting financial investments traded in the market.

As the Sub-Trust's financial invesiments are camed at fair value with fair value changes recognized in the Stalements.
of Comprahensiva [ncoma, all changss in market conditions will directly affect Net Assats Altribulable Holders of
Redsamabia Paricipating Units.

The Sub-Trust's invastments in collective investment schemes/mutual funds are based upon the NAV as suppiied
Ehu funds, in accordance with the valuation policy of tha applicable fund as cutlined in its Offering

m. it is eopected that the assets of the mutual funds will generally ba valued by an indepandant third
party administrator or other service provider, thene may be circumslances in which certain secul or other assets of
& mutual fund may nol have a readily sscortalnable market price. In such circumstances, the manager of the relevent
riutual fund may be required o valus such sacurites or instruments.

The following analysis for the Sub-Trust Is prasanted basad on the indirect expasuns to the investrmants of the undadying
fund.

Impact on MAY for @ 10% Price Movemant

30-8ep-23 30-8ep-23 30-8ep-22 30-8ep-22

Highar Lowar Highar Lower
Barks 4.6% (4.6%) 0% (2.e%)
Insurance 11% {1-1%) 0% (0.9%)
Hotels, Motels, Inns &

Gaming D0% D0% 0% 0.0%
Funds D4% (0.4%) 0.4% (0.4%)
Financials 14% {14%) 1.8% {1.8%)
Othar 24% (24%) 8% (2.8%)
Total Portfollo 0.9% (8.8%) 2.0% (B.E%)
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Financlal Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)
Market Risk (continued)

(v)  Limitations of Sensitivity Analysls

Some of the limitations of the sensitivity analysls tables above Include:

. the analysis is based on historical dats and cannot take account of the fact that future markel price movamants,
comelations betwean markets and levels of markat liquidity may bear no relation to historical pattems;
. MWHSMMMMMMHH:mmmnW

. the analyais represenis me&-mmﬂwhmm
. futura market conditions could vary significantly from those axperdenced in the pasL
Liquidity Risk

Liquicity risk s the risk that the Sub-Trus will encourter difficulty in meeting obligations assodated with financial
linbilitios that are soltled by delivoring cash or another financial asset. Among othar things liquidity could bo impairad by
an inability lo access secured andlor unsecured scurces of financing, an inability to sell assals or unforessen oulficws.
of cash or collateral or violations of counterparty or prime broker terms or covenants, This situation may arse due
to circumstances outside of the Sub-Trust's control, such as a general markat disruption or an cperational problem
affecting the Sub-Trust or third parties. Also, the ability lo sell assels may be impaired if other market participants are
soeking lo soll simdar assets a! the sama time.

The Sub-Trust's fnancial assets and financial liabilities inclede invastments in dervative contracts traded over the
counter, which ars not treded in an organized public market and which may be illiquid and in investments which may
reprasant a significant percantage of ssus slze. As a result, the Sub-Trust may not be abie to liguldate quickhy some
of these investments at an amounl close to fair value in onrder to meet requirements, or (o respond to specific events.
such as detedoration in the craditworthiness of any particular issuse. The forced liquidation of invesiment pesitions may
cause financial losses,

The Sub-Trust's investmenis include collective investmen! schemes, which may impose greater restriclions on
redemptions than those imposed by the Sub-Trust. This may include offerings less frequent redemption detes than are
affered by the Sub-Trust to its Unifholders,

Tha Sub-Trust mﬁuhhwmmn and redamplicn of Units and it ls therafore axposad to the lguldity risk
associated with Unithelder redemplions in accordance with the terms in the Offering Memorandum, The Sub-Trust's
Offering Memorandum provides for the daily subscription and redamption of Units,

The Sub-Trugt is managed to Include liquid inveatments sulficient to meet normal lquidity needs aithough substantial
redemptions of Units in the Sub-Trust could require the Sub-Trust to liquidate ils investments more rapidly than
otherwise desirmbile in order to raise cash for the redemptiona, These factors could adversaly affect the value of the
Urnits redesmaed and the valuation of the Units thal remain outstanding and the liquidity of the Sub-Trust's remaining
assets f more llquld assais have been sold to mest redemplions,

The Trustee may limit or suspend redemptions In cerain drcumstances, Including, but not Imited to, when the
determination of NAV has been suspended; where the disposal of part or all of the Sub-Trust's assets to mest
such redempiion requesis would, In the reascnable opinion of the Trustee, be prejudicial to Unithclders; or under
exiraordinary circumstances beyond the controd of the Trustee. With respect lo any redemption, having consulled with
hlnmmlw the Trustes may reserve amounts from the redemption proceeds for any axpansas, abilities
or contingencies, even if such resarvas are not required by IFRS.

Az @t 30 Septamber 2023 and 30 Septamber 2022, all Eabdity amounts are dus within thras months.

Az at 30 Saptembear 2023, gross infiows and groes cutfiows for forward forelgn curmancy contracts ware AUD 328,101,026
and AUD 329 488 B48, respeciively.

As at 30 Seplember 2022, gross inflows and gross outfiows for forward foreign curmency contracts were AUD
1,009,407 841 and AUD 993 670,287, respeciively.

Foreward foreign currency contracts are generally settied nel.
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1. Financlal Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)

{b) Liquidity Risk (continued)
Financing arangemenis include dervative transactions.

Expiration or termination of available financing for leveraged positicns, and the requirements to post collateral in respect

of changes in the fair value of leveraged exposures or changes in advance rates or other terms and conditions of the:

Sub-Trust's financing arangemaents, can result in adverse offects Lo the Sub-Trust's access to liquidity and abdity to

maintain everaged poaitions, and may cause the Sub-Trus! o incur material lossas. Tha Sub-Trusl may bomow or

uﬂlmnﬂmmdwmn:uwrldmdumndbuh for any purpose Including, Increasing Investment

capacity, and covering pe Emwhhmﬂml transaclions. However, there is no guarantee that
ta

any:mhanarﬁnm ing leverage will be available, or, if available, will be available on terms and conditions
Sub-Trust. Unfavorable economic conditions also could increase funding costs, limit access to the

mpirurmm-u or result in o decision by lenders nol to exdend credit to the Sub-Trust,

The usa of lavarage also increases risk as i magnifies the affect of any volatiiity in fair valuss on the Sub-Trust's Net
Assats Altributable o Helders of Redeemabile Paricipating Units.

A dacling In the market valua of the Sub-Trust's assaets may have particular adversa consaguances In Instances whane
thay have bomowed money on the market value of those assats. A decrease in the market value of thoss assats may
result in the lender {including derivative counterparties) requidng the Sub-Trust to posl additonal collateral or otherwise
sell assets at a time when & may not be in the Sub-Trust's best interest to do so.

i) Credit Risk

Cradil risk is tha risk that ona party to a financial investmant will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discherge an obligation.

The Investment Advisors have adopted procedures to reduce credit risk relaled io iis dealings with cou

or issuers in the Sub-Trust. Before transacting, the Invesiment Advisors or their related parties evaluate both credi-
worthiness and repulation by conducting & credit analysis of the party, their businsss and reputation. The credit risk
of approved counterparties or issuars is then monitored on an ongoing basis, including periodic reviews of financial
stataments and Intarim financlal raports as needed.

In erdar to reducs exposurs to cradit lossas, soma over-the-counter derivative agreemants antared into by tha Sub-Trust
parmil netting of transactions arising under such agreemenis, mmmmmmmm
foreign exchange contracts. While such netting rights do not reault in an offssl of reported assets and lkal , they
do provide for the reduction of credil dsk on favorable over-the-counter transactions with @ single countempanty 1o the
axiant of the value of unfavorable over-the-counter transactons with the same counterparty upon the occumence of an
avent of defaull or lermination event as all over-the-countar fransactions with the counlerparty wnder such agreement
ars terminatad and amounts owad from and amounts payabls 1o tha countarparty ans satad on & net basis.

i cbligaions and. ”“”?“W;Eﬂmm'“*mﬁw'“m'm eoion of the
lgl.uunn:“ dlur: mudmm : lity as sensitivity, perception

169/294



1.

fe)

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

33 Australla Hybrld Securities Fund
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For _thu Year I_Emlud 30 Bephm_her 2023

Financlal Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)

Crodit Rizk (continued)

The Sub-Trust is subject to a number of riska refating to the insolvency, administration, Bquidaton or other formal
protection from creditors (Minechvency™) of the Custedian or any sub-custodian / Trustes. These rsks include without
limitation:

I The loss of all cash held with the Cuslodian or sub-cusiodian [ Trustes which is not being treated as client
money bath al tha level of the Cuslodian and any sub-custodians | Trustss ("cient money™).

Il The loss of all cash which the Custodian or sub-cusiodian / Trustes has falled to treat as cliant money in
accordance with procedures (if any) agreed with the Sub-Trust.

jik. The loss of soma or all of any sacurities held on Sub-Trust which have not been propery segregated and so
identified both at the level of the Cusiodian and any sub-custodians / Trustee (Trust Assaets®) or clienl monay
hirld by or with the Custodian or sub-custodian / Trustoe,

. Tha loss of soma or all assals dus o tha incormect oparation of accounts by the Custodian or sub-custodian
{ Trustes of dua to the process of entifying and transferming the relevant Trust Assets andfor dient monay
Including any daduction to meal the administrative costs of an Insolvancy.

W Lossas caused by prolanged delays in recelving transfers of balances and regaining control over the ralevant
assels,

Mmmﬂmumm;ﬂmhmmbmmmmm Inmmm,mhmld
causa the Investmant Manager to tamporarily suspend the calculation of the NAY and dealing in Unita.

The clearing and depository operations for the Sub-Trust's security transactions are mainly concentraled with the
Custodian. At 30 Seplember 2023 and 30 Seplember 2022, substantially all cash and cash equivalents, balances due
from broker and investments are placed in custody with the Cuslodian (with the excaption of the Time Deposits which
ey b habd with a third party custodian) or with the underying broker.

At 30 Beplember 2023 and 30 Seplember 2022, the following financial assels ware exposed to credit rsk: darvative
financial asseds, cash and cash aquivalents and other receivables. The camying amounts of financial assats bast refect
the maximum counterparty cradit sk axposure at tha reporting date,

The maximum exposure to credit risk (excluding nobional values on forward foreign currency contracts) as at the
reporting date can be analyzed as follows. Amounts in the table below are based on the market value.

3-Bop-202F 30-Bep-2M22

_inatrument Type* AUD AUD .
Cash and cash squivalents 14,581,881 ZT 38T 500
Inbarast recahvable 17,628 8.7
Due from brokens:

Collateral amounts 1,163,847 1,100,000
Forward foreign currency confracts 34,542 24 038 687
Racatvable for Investmants soid 1,338,285 2,088,297
Receivable for Units subscribed TOB. 478 832,660
Odher assats aria a0
Total 18,280,144 BB 448 531

“{Open anded Imvasiment oompanss ane not indilded in T ible sinos they do nol sepots the Subs Tt i g oedi ek

mwFummmmmemumm:mﬂM|mmmﬂmmmw
Fund

Security ratings, if any, are cbtalined frem S&P/Mocdy's/Fitch Invesior Service.

Rating

A 0.64 -
BBB 84.07 5318
BB 831 1335
B 354 3.18
Not Rated 21.44 3029
Total
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1. Financlal Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)

(¢)  Credit Risk (continued)

The table above indicates the credit quality of the Master Fund's investments. Counterparties or issuera are rated
aither investmant grade in thedr own rght or il not rated then an entity in the corporate family tree hie such a raling
and the Credit Risk Management and Advisory depariment of the Investment Manager belleves there Is strong Implicit
support from the rated entity to the counterparty or issuer. The Investment Advisors have a credit pelicy in place and
ths exposure to cradit sk is monilored on an ongoing basis.

Acradit default swap |s an agreement thal involves one party making a stream of payments io ancther party In exchange
for tha right to recaive protection on a refarence security or obligation. As a seller of protection, the Sub-Trust generally
recehves a payment stream throughout the term of swap, provided that thers is no credit evant. In addition, if the Sub-
Trusl sells protection through a cradil default swap, the Sub-Trust could suffer a loss because the value of the reference
obligation may be hess than the premium payments recoived. Upon the occumence of a specific credit avant, the Sub-
Trusl, a8 & saller of cradit protaction, may be required Io lake possassion of the defauliad refarsnce obligation and
pay the buyer an amount aqual 1o the notional amount of the swap In a physical seftled trade. Tha Sub-Trust may also
pay a net settemant amount In the form of cash or securities equal to the notional amount of the swap reducad by the
racovery value of the reference obligation in a cash setfled trade. Racovery values ane at timas established through
the credil event auction process in which market participants are ensured that a transparent price has been set for the:
defaulted security or chiigation. in addition, the Sub-Trust is entiied to a retum of any assets, which have been pledged
a8 collaters! to the counlerparty. The notional amount of the Sub-Trust's credit defaull swaps, F any, s disclosed in
the Schedules of Invesiments, There ware no cradit default swaps as at 30 September 2023 and 30 September 2022,

Tha Sub-Trust had no direct countarparty or lssuer cradit sk greater than 5% of tha Net Asseis Aftfbutabla Holders of
Redsamable Participating Units as at 30 Seplembar 2023 and 30 September 2022

The Sub-Trust measures credil risk and expected credil loases using probability of default, exposure at default and
loss given default Management consider both historical analysis and forward looking information in determining any
expecied credit loss, Management consider the probability of default to be close o zero as the counterparties have a
strong capacity to meet their contractual cbiigations in the near term, As a resull, no loss alowanca has been recognized
based on 12-month expaclod cradit lossas as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Sub-Trust.

For the Master Fund the following tabls ssts forth concentrations graater than 5% of MAW.

30-Sep-2023  30-Bap-2022

% of Nat Assets of

Concantradion Master Fund

Group 725 7T
National Ausiralia Bank Lid 8. 8.7
Commanwoalth Bank of Australla 5.58 =~
Ausimila and Mow Zealand Banking Group Lid 548 -~
AMP Lid 521 T.84
Aol Lid 514 -

*Amourt s s Than $%.

Tha Master Fund measures credit risk and expectad credit losses using probability of default, exposune at defaull and
loss given defoult. Managemant congidar both historical analysis and forward looking information in determining any
axpacted cradit loss. Management considor the probabiity of default to be ciose o zoro as the counterparties have a
strong capacity fo meet their contractual obligations In the near term. Az a resull, no loss allowanca has bean recognised
based on 12-month expactad cradit logses as any such Impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Master Fund.
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Financlal Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)
Additional Risks
Additional risks Include, but ane nol imited to the following;

(3 Capital Risk Management

The capital of the Sub-Trust s represented by the Net Assets Atiributable to Holders of Redesmable Participating Units.
The amount of the Net Assels Atiributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Unils can change significantly on a
daily basis as the Sub-Trust ks subject to daily subscriptions and redemplions at tha discretion of Uniholder. Tha Sub-
Trust's objective when managing capital ls to safeguard tha Sub-Trust's ablity to continue as a going concem In crder
o provide returns for Unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capilal base o support the:
development of the invesiment activities of the Sub-TrusL

(i} Conceniration Risk

The Sub-Trust may imeest in a imited number of investments and investment themes. A consequence of a limited
number of investments is that performanca may be more favorably or unfavorably affected by the parformance of an
indidual imvestmant.

() Oparational Risk

Oparational risk is the potential for loss causad by a deficiancy in information, communications, transaction processing
and settlement, and accounting systems. The Sub-Trust's service providers, as shown in Note 7, maintain controls and
procedures for the purpose of helping to manage operational risk. Reviews of the service levels of service providers
are parformed on & regular basis by the Investment Advisors, Mo assurance is given that these measures will be 100%

) Legal, Tax and Regulatory Risks
Legal, tax and regulatory changes could occur during the duration of the Sub-Trust which may adversaly affect the
Sub-Trust,

With respect to tax, the Sub-Trust may be subject to taxation on capital gains, interest and dividends In certain
Jurisdictions where the Sub-Trust invests.

mwmmﬂmmﬂMMMMMWmewmmmmmwhdﬂu
consistent. Tax obligations where probable and estimable are recorded as labilities. However, some tax obligations:
am subject (o uncertainty and may result in additional teox labiltes, intorest and penalies based on fulure octions,
Interpratations or judgments of these authorities covering curment and past tax positions. Accounting standards may
also change, creating wmanmmmmsuﬂmmmmhamwhwmmmn
Is possible that cartain potantial tax obligations which cumantly are not probabla may becoma so which may result in
additional tax liabilites for the Sub-Trust in the fulure and these additional liabiites may be maleral. Because of the
foregoing unceriainties, the NAY may not reflect the tax llablites ulimately bome by the Sub-Trusl, including al the:
tima of any subscriptions, redemptions or exchanges of interegts in the Sub-Trusl, which could have an adverse impact
on inveslors at that ime.

Agditional details of risk not disciosed inthoso financial stalements can be found in the Sub-Trust's Offering Momorandum,
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16

35 Australla Hybrld Securtties Fund
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2023

Credit Insthutions
As at 30 September 2023 and 30 September 2022, all cash and cash equivalents end amounts dua fromfio brokers.

wara held by the following credit Institutions with a credit rating of Aor higher. Cradi Institufion ratings are obtalned from
S5&P'a / Moody's Invesiors Service | Fitch Ratings and are unaudited.

Assots:
% of Mat % aof Mal
AUD Anmats ALD Anwirts
| Awsiralla and New Zealand Banking Group Lig™ — - 8,328 008 115
Barclays Bank PLC™ = = #5551 oo
BNF Paribas SA0" - - 18,048 BTT 281
Brown Brothars Hamiman & Go.t? 14,883 527 227 - -
Brown Brothers Hariman & Co.® - - 19,084 0.00=
. Skandinavisics Eneidida Banken AB 85,618 o2 = =
Sumitiorno Bank 2,16 0.00™ - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 14,981,881 20 27,387,500 LTT
|_Due from brokersc® o Lol i
Augtralia and New Zoaland Banking Group Lid - - 380,000 0.08
| Barclays Bank PLC 123,847 .02 - -
BMF Paribas SA 280,000 0.04 = =
HSBC Bank PLC 450,000 0.07 - -
. Reysl Bank of Scotiand 280,000 0.04 20,000 0.10 |
Total dus from brokers 1,163,947 0.7 1,100,000 a5
B nrmelrichi — Clrtiodien tash ool
PPttt e P b bk B 0 DESAL.
B Raatrietid  cath sedlitafal B forwnarel Toraign GlETaRny Sonirasis.
Liabiitiss
% of Mat % of Mt
ALUD Asnsats AUD Assats
- - 6,530,000 0.98
a = 7,500,000 1,08
Total dus to broksrs = = 14,430,000 1.9

F Rnatricied = cosh collwiersl for foreed forsigr oemency cordmcts,

Exchange Rates

Tha following axchange rales (against AUD) were used to convert the Invastments and other assets and Labliities
denominated in currancies other than AUD:

Euro (EUR) CBOEETT =
Jupanesa Yan (JFY) 05 TR4B0T 93 063800
United States Dolar (LISD) 0644150 0642850

Soft Commissions

The Sub-Trust may pay commissions for execution only andlor for execution and investmant ressarch, The Sub-Trust
did not otherwise enler into any third party soft commission arangements for the years ended 30 September 2023 and
30 September 2022,

Contingent Liabllitles
There wers no contingent labiliies as at 30 Seplember 2023 and 30 Seplembar 2022,

Subsequant Events:
HNo events coccumed subsequent to 30 Septemnber 2023 that would require adjustment to, or disclosure in these financial
statements.

a5
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G5 Australla Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the Year I_Emlnd 30 hphm_her 2023

Indemnlfications

Thes Sub-Trust may anier inlo contracts that contain & variety of indemnifications. Tha Sub-Trust's maxdmum axposLne:
undser thess arangaments |s unknown. However, the Sub-Trust has not had pror clalms or losses pursuant to these

cantracts.

Approval of the Financial Statements

Management has approved the finandal statements on 21 December 2023 and the financial statements may not be
amaendad aftar Bsuanca.
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GS Australla Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2023
% of
Holdings/ Falr Value Net
_ Unis Description_ AUD  Asasts
Investment Fund*
Austrailan Dollar
3485744  Augirslla Enhanced Incoma Fund Il - Class 10 (Ace), AUD shares 843 572 881 08.23
Total nvestment Fund 643,572,861 B2.23
Forward Forsign Currency Contracts heid for Portfollo Hedging Purposas
Unraalized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gailn Nat
Date Currancy Bought Currsncy Sold Countarparty AUD  Asaets
D4M0/2023 AUD 25,366 JPY 2,420,743 HSBC Bank PLG BE 0.00
Total Unreallzed Galn on Forward Forelgn Curmency Contracts held for Portialle Hedglng
Purposes B8 0.00
Unreallzed % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Net
Date  Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counlarparty AUD  Asssts
0AM 02023 JPY 4,882 870 AUD 52,428 HSBC Bank PLC 1401) {0.00)
0310/2023 uso 801,362 AUD 843,258 HSBC Bank PLC 15,348) {0.00)
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Forelgn Curmency Comtracts held for Portfollo Hedging
Purposes _ 5758)  {0.00)

Forward Foerslgn Currency Contracts held for Class Hedglng Purposss
Unreafized % of

Maturity Amournt Amount Gain Nat
Date Currsncy Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Asasts
21112023 AUD 884,335 uso B28,623 HSBC Bank PLC 5,564 0.00
211172023 AUD 2,804 300 ush 1,730,238 Morgan Stanley & Co 388 0.00
2212023 AUD 36,6847 JPY 3,381,612 Morgan Stanley & Co 93 0.00
211152023 ALD 110267 JPY 10,316,870 MNatwest Markets PLC 1.858 0.00
222023 AUD §52.243 JPY 61,259,001 Westpac Banking Corp 13474 0.00
22M172023 AUD 1.187 818 JPY 112,833,300 State Stres! Bank & Trust Co. 1,658 0.00
Australia and New Zealand
151172023 usD 577 587 AUD 896,884 Banking Group Lid 2453 0.00
291112023 uso 1,130,640 AUD 1,785,437 HSBC Bank PLC 8,938 0.00
Total Unreallzed Galn on Forward Forelgn Curmency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 34,458 0.00

Unrealtzed % of

Maturity Amount Amount Logs Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Asssts
211112023 AUD 752,628 ush 487 488 UBS AG {6.389) {0.00)
Australia and New Zealand
21112023 AUD 2147723 uso 1,382 826 Banking Group Lid {5.282) {0.00)
2211172023 JPY 2125927116 AUD 22915686 Natwost Markets PLC {570,674) {0.08)
22112023 JPY  2144,570,620 AUD 23,084 840 HSBC Bank PLC {575.414) {0.04)
211172023 uso 86,612,294 AUD 134,915,899 Barclays Bank PLC (54,068) {0.01)
211112023 uso 86,612,204 AUD 135,024,739 BNF Paribas A {172,807) {0.02)
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Forsign Currancy Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 1 4] 0.21

The sccompamying nobes lorm en inbegral part of the nancel stelements. B
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GS Australla Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2023
% of
Falir Value Neat
Total Investments AUD Asgets
Tertal Investraant Fund 643,572,861 88.23

Total Unrealized Gein on Forward Foreign Curfency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging

Purposas Bg {0,060}
Total Unnealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Confracts held for Portfolio Hadging

Purposes {8,750 {0.00)
Tatal Unreallzed Galn on Forward Forelgn Curmency Contracts held for Class Hedging

Purposes 34,458 om
Tatal Unrealized Losa on Forward Foreign Cumency Contracts held for Class Hedging

Purposas 1,384,614 {0.21
Other Assets and Liabilites : [12,'-'143!3;2!?-l 19';
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemabile Perticipating Units 855,143,308 100.00
" Repressnis affiliated holding.
Currency Abbreviations:

ALID Australlan Dollar
JPY Japanese Yen
UsD United States Dollar

The sccompamying nobes form en inbegral part of the Snancel stelsments. T
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G5 Australla Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments

As at 30 September 2022
Falr Valus % of Net
Units  Description AUD  Assels
Investmaent Fund*
Australian Dollar
4,104,284  Australia Enhanced Income Fund Il - Class 10 (Acc), AUD shares 710,205,307 87.78
Total Investment Fund 710,205,307 g7.T8

Forward Forsign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging Purposss
Unreallzsd % of

Maturity Amount Amount Galn Nat
__Dute  Cumency  Bought Cumrency  GSold Counterparty AUD _ Assets
0501072022 AUD 6,317,183 JPY 583,372.838 Margan Stanley & Co 48,155 0.
oeMor2022 AUD 289,312 JPY 27,755,000 Westpac Banking Corp 1.027 0.00
o5H02022 JPY 127,782,707 ALUD 13,247,744 Maorgan Stanley & Co 418,182 0.08
DaH2022 JPY 10,981,648 ALD 116,260 Citibank NA 1,868 0.00
0BH02022 JEY 27,673,000 AUD 286,073 Royal Bank of Canada 1.3 0.00

Australia and Mew Zealand
oGH0ra022 JPY 37,929,676 ALD 354,505 Banking Group Lid 13,128 0.00
DEM 02022 JeyY 83,624,000 ALD 853,681 Westpac Banking Corp 45,033 o.m
oaHor0E2 JEY 230,263,784 ALD 2417, 760 HSBC Bank PLC 56,904 0.01
OEM 02022 UsD 58,000 ALUD 67,387 BNP Parlbas SA 2812 0,00
05102022 usD 208,884 AUD 301,840 HSBC Bank PLC 22,841 0.00
051052022 usD 102,731,775 AUD 150,886,422 Standard Charterad Bank 8,593,980 1.22
05M 02022 UsD 103,812,788 AUD 152,851,002 Morgan Stanley & Co 8,968,231 123
2202 usD 5,852,957 AUD 145,785,503 Morgan Stanley & Co 3,233,836 0.45
22/12/2022 uso B5,952 957 AUD 145,796,801 UBS AG 3,222 539 044

Total Unrealized Galn on Forward Forelgn Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes _ 24938887 343

Maturity Amount Amount Losa Nat

___Date  Cumancy Bought  Currency ___Sold Counterpa ___AUD __ Assets
falf2022 AUD 372,084 UsD 253,000 Credit Suisse (21,407) {0.00}
0502022 AUD 728427  USD 517,440 Royal Bank of Canada (78,355)  {0.01)
osMo2022 AUD 1,300,371 usD 801,658 HSBC Bank PLC {101,983) {0.01)
05MO2022  AUD 5620320  USD 3,799,533 Standard Chartered Bank {280,155)  (0.04)
osHOZ0Z2  AUD 7,293,659 JPY 888,420,068 Westpac Banking Corp {104,239)  (0.02)
Australia and New Zealand
0510/2022  AUD 7803443  USD 5,317,766 Banking Group Lid (467,396)  (0.06)
051052022 AUD 145,970,350 usD 95,952 057 LIBS AG {3257,855)  (0A5)
05M0/2022  AUD 153,360,737  USD 101,008,135 Morgan Stanley & Co (8738,871)  {0.52)
Australla and Mew Zaaland
06MOZ022  AUD 435423 JPY 40,679,498 Banking Group Lid {(1763)  {0.00)
08/10/2022 AUD 13,879,041 JPY 1,332,633,298 Morgan Stanley & Co (441,800)  {0.06)
22M2/2022  AUD 1413963  USD 917,000 Morgan Stanley & Co (10,180)  {0.00)
oeHoR0Z2  JPY 26,620,808  AUD 286,572 Standard Chartered Bank (476)  (0.00)
08102022  JPY 2875013488  AUD  20,105468 Royal Bank of Scolland PLC (356,884)  {0.08)
06/10/2022  JPY 2680013488  AUD 29,157,267 Morgan Stanley & Co (354.950)  (0.05)
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Forelgn Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 4,31 1

The sccompamying nobes form en inbegral part of the Snancel stelsments. B
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G5 Australla Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments

As at 30 September 2022
% of
Fair Valus Net
Total Investments AUD Asgets
Tartal Investriant Fund 710,205,307 a7.78
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Forsign Curmency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposas 24,938 987 343
Tatal Unnealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hodging
Pu 21431 1.27
Other mrpmw Liablities i 41!.039; { 0.
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redsemabls Particlpating Units 738,348 053 100.00
*  Represents affiliated holding.
Currency Abbreviations:

AUD Ausiralian Dollar
JPY Japanesa Yen
usD United States Dollar

The sccompamydng nobes form en inbegrel part of the nancel stelements. &
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2024
610,392,770.88 59,305,761,619
4,984,587.54 484,302,525
38,625,228.79 5,699,152,508
281,065,338.08 27,308,308,248
3,948,958,537
148,766,329.82 21,950,471,965
7,884,999.63
35,251,815.37
476,358.71
14,817,743.31
4.90 723
7.97 774
8,290
10.04 1,481
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187,117,965.90
5,051,655

37.04

181/294

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

276



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )

(a

60

2023 12

Ooooooooooooooooooad

I

(d

(e

26

3,208,327,351.51
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UFJ S.A.

2022 12 31

2022 2021

32.1,32.3 3,825,986,159 564,524,258  7,093,833,508 1,046,695,134

3,16,32.1,32.3 4,284,596,331 632,192,189  3,730,155,270 550,384,410

2,229,417,660 328,950,576  1,997,606,438 294,746,830

2,055,178,671 303,241,613  1,732,548,832 255,637,580

32.1,32.3 41,095,998 6,063,715 3,605,721 532,024
4,32.1,32.3 2,646 390 2,819 416
5 2,550,486 376,324 3,862,788 569,954

6 534 79 227 33

7,16 56,886,270 8,393,569 37,679,055 5,559,545

8 8,211,118,424  1,211,550,523 10,869,139,388 1,603,741,517
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UFJ S.A.
2022 12 31

2022 2021
16,32.1  2,665,200,741 393,250,369  3,115,164,719 459,642,554
2,665,200,741 393,250,369  3,115,164,719 459,642,554
0 0 0 0
9,16,32.1  4,852,402,519 715,971,992  7,206,246,667  1,063,281,696
4,852,402,519 715,971,992  7,206,246,667  1,063,281,696
0 0 0 0
10 2,511,756 370,610 889,765 131,285
11,16 127,795,347 18,856,203 51,353,342 7,577,186
10,289,047 1,518,149 5,547,897 818,592
12 8,258,300 1,218,512 3,308,750 488,206
13 2,030,747 299,637 2,239,146 330,386
14 187,117,966 27,609,256 187,117,966 27,609,256
15 302,480,181 44,630,951 287,051,462 42,354,443
15 325,518 48,030 69,819 10,302
62,995,349 9,294,964 15,697,750 2,316,203
17 8,211,118,424  1,211,550,523 10,869,139,388  1,603,741,517
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UFJ S.A.
2022 12 31
2022 2021
18,32.1 75,775 11,181 545,003 80,415
75,775 11,181 545,003 80,415
21 44,808,157,318 6,611,443,612 43,689,649,279  6,446,407,751
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UFJ S.A.
2022 12 31

2022 2021
133,835,051 19,747,362 53,506,253 7,894,848
1,609,626 237,500 10,173,725 1,501,133
73,318,828 10,818,193 34,108,535 5,032,714
(85,089,296)  (12,554,926)  (38,412,804) (5.667,809)
(19,419,339)  (2,865,323)  (38,153,213) (5,629,507)
(1,835,161) (270,778) (131,483) (19,400)
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
22 134,826,564 19,893,660 154,145,261 22,744,133
(44,141,518)  (6,513,081)  (81,932,662)  (12,089,164)
5,972,209 881,199 5,537,488 817,056
23 8,565,956 1,263,907 5,473,576 807,626
(63,758,784)  (9,407,609)  (72,749,111)  (10,734,131)
25,26 (22,559,016)  (3,328,583)  (27,324,178) (4,031,682)
(17,925,916)  (2,644,969)  (19,840,859) (2,927,519)
(2,247,688) (331,646) (2.,624,675) (387,271)
(1,360,468) (200,737) (1,486,802) (219,378)
27,31 (41,199,768)  (6,079,026)  (45,424,934) (6,702,449)
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(1,454,125) (214,556) (1,527,483) (225, 380)

24 (2,730,496) (402, 885) (1,414,703) (208,739)

12,28.1  (21,048,460) (3.105,700) (5.089,413) (750,943)
64,977,102 9,587,371 17,536,401 2,587,496

28.2 (1,981,753) (292,408) (1,838,651) (271,293)
62,995,349 9,294,964 15,697,751 2,316,203
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UFJ S.A.

2022 12 31

1.1.
UFJ S.A.
1974 11
1996

2005 10

2006

2007
70 30

2008 28 49,080
1,817,968.52 37,117,968.52
92.25
63.72 28.53
2014
12-13
1993
907648
2016
UFJ S.A.
2017 31 UFJ
S.A. 100

1.2.
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2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2022
2021

2.4.

2.5.
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2.6.

1997 12 16
1.25
2022 12 31 2021

2.7.

2.5

2.8.

10

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13.
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2022 2021

2,947,074,206 2,722,598,923
1,337,522,125 1,007,556,347
4,284,596,331 3,730,155,270

2,646 2021 2,819

3,500,201 78,308 0 -215,300 3,363,209 3,075,537 287,671

980,932 39,617 0 -60,338 960,211 822,705 137,506

2,519,269 38,691 0 -154,962 2,402,998 2,252,833 150,165

23,250,252 343,565 -49,071 -1,310,475 22,234,272 19,971,456 2,262,815

21,304,813 343,565  -49,071 -1,310,475 20,288,832 18,026,017 2,262,815

1,945,439 0 0 0 1,945,439 1,945,439 0

26,750,453 421,873 -49,071 -1,525,775 25,597,481 23,046,993 2,550,486
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10

2022 12 31
8,056,485,201

2022 2021
534 227
534 227

2022 2021
16,263,642 1,809,613
14,158,477 3,228,665
656,139 703,562
4,377,532 1,282,640
6,922,186 17,078,721
11,432,600 6,064,153
1,576,343 758,601
195,524 404,820
0 521,373
834,146 710,430
0 4,187,017
469,681 929,460
56,886,270 37,679,055

5,749,717,292

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
2022 2021
528,787 622,608
1,982,969 267,157
2,511,756 889,765

193/294
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11
2022 2021
9,571,741 14,627,561
10,319,486 13,086,289
13,423,755 31,247
0 0
29,171 2,335,652
- 87,606,762 20,170,200
74,489 581,019
* 6,769,943 521,374
127,795,347 51,353,342
*) 2022 12 31
12
2018 2016
21 L.G.-A60
2022 12 31
13
2022 2021
2,030,747 2,239,147
2,030,747 2,239,147
14
2022 12 31 5,002,575
49,080 187,117,966
15
2022 11,858,026 275,193,436 69,819
2021 12 31 0 0 15,697,750
0 0 (13,331)
2022 0 12,265,675 (12,265,675)
2016 0 (4,276,351) 4,276,351
0 6,700,000 (6,700,000)
739,395 0 (739, 395)
2022 12 31 12,597,421 289,882,760 325,518

10
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16

2022 12 31 53,731,675 2021 45,742,351
2022 25 12,265,675 2022
2016 4,276,351
2022 12 31
2022
2018 8,700,000
2019 9,981,000
2020 10,911,000
2021 11,874,000
2022 12,265,675
2022 12 31 53,731,675
2022 12 31
2022 2021
3,349,527,021 2,000,338,586
15,563,726 16,028,664
3,365,090, 747 2,016,367,250
2022 2021
2,491,655,095 2,952,250,135
475,836,557 840,148,829
6,590,039 9,626,650
2,974,081,691 3,802,025,614
2013 26
575 2013
2022 12 31 3,489,714,401

195/294
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3,336,184,416
7,937,073

2021

1,808,585,590
1,470,954
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145,592,912 134,630,654
3,489,714,401 1,944,687,198

17
2022 12 31 5,614,636,504 2021
8,054,585,535
18
2022 2021
75,775 545,003
19
2022 2021
1,698,764 2,796,181
20
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
21
22
2022 2021
27,477,944 26,016,529
86,642,608 117,947,111
18,149,234 7,630,429
1,059,205 1,134,939

1,497,573 1,416,253
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134,826,564 154,145,261
1992 17 69 (2)
23

2022 2021
365 0
4,308,298 1,115,225
1,335,997 534,448
* 2,404,067 3,820,715
513,673 0
3,556 3,188
8,565,956 5,473,576

™
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24

25

26

27

28

2022 2021
701,672 178,276
802,718 877,581
7,812 42,595
1,218,294 316,251
2,730,496 1,414,703
2022 2021
34 33
87 85
45 52
166 170

2022 2021
6,267,400 6,248,642
853,614 884,446
5,413,786 5,364,196

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

2022 2021

637,273 1,364,350
1,132,763 1,135,290
5,280,881 4,913,868
6,895,172 6,153,665
1,687,297 1,739,510
5,739,620 7,969,490
3,940,850 3,509,929

15,057,271 17,958,719

525,935 561,452

122,970 12,374

179,736 106,287

41,199,768 45,424,934
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2020 12 31

100

8212

100

30

100,000

100,000

107 (1)

2024
179 (1)
0.8
2016
0.8
0.8
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2022 2021
15,407,163 3,710,052
5,641,297 1,379,361
21,048,460 5,089,413
2022 2021
1,905,899 1,766,322
75,855 72,329
1,981,754 1,838,651
33 100-
2014 59
2014 49 2015 12 18
20,000
12
2024
2015
2018
2018 180 (1)
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2022 12 31 4,115,522 (4,241,878
) 2021 3,245,118 3,941,196
2020
2022 2021
241,485 254,582
67,237 67,930
26,691 33,839
335,413 356,351

2022 2022 12 31 3402
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32
32.1.

2022 12 31

3,825,986,159 0 0 3,825,986,159
2,947,074,206  1,337,522,125 0 4,284,596,331
41,095,998 0 0 41,095,998

0 0 2,646 2,646

0 0 0 0
6,814,156,363  1,337,522,125 2,646  8,151,681,134
2,665,200,741 0 0 2,665,200,741
4,852,402,519 0 0 4,852,402,519
7,517,603,260 0 0 7,517,603,260
75,775 0 0 75,775

75,775 0 0 75,775
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2021 12 31

7,093,833,508 0 0 0 7,093,833,508
2,722,598,923 1,007,556,347 0 0 3,730,155,270
3,605,721 0 0 0 3,605,721

0 0 0 2,819 2,819

0 0 0 0 0
9,820,038,152  1,007,556,347 0 2,819 10,827,597,318
3,115,164,719 0 0 0 3,115,164,719
7,206,246,667 0 0 0 7,206,246,667
10,321,411,386 0 0 0 10,321,411,386
545,003 0 0 0 545,003
545,003 0 0 0 545,003

202/294
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1,899,365,978 602,914 0 1,899,968,892 58,671,005

276,202,684 0 0 276,202,684 1,460,089

2,175,568,662 602,914 0 2,176,171,576 60,131,094

1,951,149,778 583,601 0 1,951,733,379 58,650,622

3,429,660,974 0 0 3,429,660,974 80,871,843

5,380,810,752 583,601 0 5,381,394,353 139,522,465
2022 12 31 2022 12 31
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3,881,995,296 589,236 0 0 3,882,584,532 33,989,292

1,385,898,582 0 0 0 1,385,898,582 28,426,708

5,267,893,878 589,236 0 0 5,268,483,114 62,416,000

3,915,453,725 591,608 0 0 3,916,045,333 33,927,979

6,118,018,224 0 0 0 6,118,018,224 50,321,336

10,033,471,949 591,608 0 0 10,034,063,557 84,249,315
2021 12 31 2021 12 31
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32.3.

2022 12 31

2022

3,825,986,159
89,447,866
3,825,986,159

4,284,596,331
276,865,118
660,289,269
2,933,839,603
374,268,606

2021

7,093,833,508
97,631,550
7,093,833,508

3,730,155,270
940,703,432
829,542,452
1,825,388,304
29,926,203

39,333,735 104,594,879
41,095,998 3,605,721
26,460,119 91,423
9,368,347 1,357,565
5,267,532 2,156,733
0 0

2,646 2,819
2,646 2,819

534 227

534 227

8,151,681,668

10,827,597,545
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32.4.
2022 12 31
2022 2022
46,212,155 253,378
143,248,397 2,129,579
210,566,686 3,156,843
1,499,941,654 53,131,205
276,202,684 1,460,089
2,176,171,576 60,131,094
2021 12 31
2021 2021
280,117,356 1,814,411
2,575,793,556 24,076,449
395,811,895 2,490,877
630,861,725 5,607,555
1,385,898,582 28,426,708
5,268,483,114 62,416,000

33
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKIMG (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2022

{in LU=D)
ASSETS

Motes 2022 2024
Cash, balances with central banks
and post office banks 321,323 3825986159 T.053.833.508
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3,16, 321, 323, 4.284.596.321 3. 730155270
a) repayable on demand 2,220,417 660 1.997 606,435
b} other loans and advances 21055.178.6T 1.732548 832
Loans and advances o customers 321, 323 41.095.9%98 3.805.T21
Shares and cther variable-yield securities 4,321, 32.3. 2.646 2818
Fixed Assets 5 2.550.486 3862788
Other assets -] 534 227
Prepayments and accrued income T.16 56.886.2T0 AT.ET9.055
TOTAL ASSETS a8 8.211.118.424 10.865,135.288

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.

L1z
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBZURG) S.A.
BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2022
{in USD)
= contmued -

LIABILITIES

Motes 2022 2024
Amounts owed to credit institutions 16, 321, 2,66%5,200,741 3.115.164.T19
a) repayable on demand 2.665.200.741 3115164718
b} with agreed maturity dates 0 L1]
Amounts owed 1o customers 8,18, 321, 4,852,402,519 7.206.246 667
a) repayable on demand 4 852 402515 7206 248 667
b) with agreed maturity dates. o o
Cther liabilities 10 2.511.756 BB9.765
Accruals and deferred income 11,186 127.795.347 51.353.342
Frovisions 10.289.047 5.547 897
a) provisions for tacation 12 8.255.300 3.308.750
b) other provisions 13 2.030.747 2. 238148
Subscribed capital 14 187 117,968 187.117.966
Reserves 15 302.480.181 287.051.482
Result brought forward 15 325.518 63819
Profit for the financial year 62,995,349 15.697.750
TOTAL LIABILITIES 17 T B211.118424 10.869.133.388

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.

-13.

209/294



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )

Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKIMG (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
December 31, 2022

{in USD)
Motes 2022 20
Cantingent liabilities 18, 32.1. T5.775 545.003
af which:
guarantees and assets pledged as
collateral security 2775 545.003
Fiduclary operations 21 44 B08.157.318 43.689.649.2T9

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.

-14.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKIMNG (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Year ended December 31, 2022
{in LS
Motes 2022 2021
Interest receivable and similar income 133.835.051 53.506.253
af which:
- Megative interast received on amounts owed 1,600 626 10173725
to credit institutions and to customers
- Interest Gain from foreign currency swap 73315828 24108535
Interest payable and similar charges (85.089.296) (38.412.804)
af which:
- Megative interest paid on loans and advances (19.419.339) (/5313
and on balances with credit institutions
- Interest Loss fram foreign currency swap (1835 161) (131.483)
Imcome from securities 0 0
Income from shares and ather variable yield securities i] 0
Commission receivable x2 134.826.564 154.145.261
Commission payable (44.141.518) (81.932.662)
Met profit on financial operations 5.972.209 5.537.488
Other operating income 23 B.565.956 5473576
General administrative expenses (63.758.784) (72.749.111)
a) staff costs 25, 26 (22 558.016) (27.324.178)
of which:
wages and salaries (17.925.918) (19,840, 859)
social security costs (2247 .588) (2524.675)
of which:
- social securly costs relating to pensions (1.350.468) {1.485.802)
b) other administrative expenses 27T, M (41.199.768) (45.424.934)
Value adjustments in respect of tanglble [1.454.125) {1.527483)
and intangible assets
Other aperating charges 24 (2.730.496) (1.414.703)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 12, 281 {21,048 460) (5.089.413)
Profit on ardinany activities after tax B4.977.102 17.536.404
Other taxes not shawn under the preceding items 28.2 (1.981.753) (1.838.551)
Praofit for the financial year 62.935.343 15.697.751

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.

-16.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022

HOTE 1 - GEMERAL

1.1

Corporate matters

Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) 5 4. (the "Bank”) was incorporated in Luxembourg
on April 11, 1974 as a socidld anomyme.

Om April 1, 188G, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo, Lid., merged with The Mitsubishi Bank, Limited to form
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi Ltd_, and Bank of Tokyo (Luxembourg) S.A. changed its name to Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi (Luzembourg) S.A

On October 1, 2005, the indirect shareholder, Mitsubshi Tokyo Financial Group, Inc. (MTFG) merged with UFJ
Holdings, Inc. (UFJ) and formed a new financial group, Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG).

On January 1, 2008, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokye-Mitsubsshi, Ltd. merged with UFJ Bank Livted to
form The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd,, and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi (Luxembourg) 5.4 changed its
namea 1o Bank ol Tokya-Mitsubishi UFJ [Luxembourg) S A,

On April 2, 2007, the Bank became a jeintly capfalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation by 70% and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UF.J Ltd. by 30%, which are under the same holding
company Mitsubishi LIFJ Finangial Group (MUFG), Consequently, Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi LIFJ
{Luxembourg) 5.4 changed its name to MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody S.A. (MUGC).

On April 28, 2008, MITSUBISHI UFJ) Global Custody S5 4., has issued 48,080 new shares and the capital of the
Bank has been increased by USD 1,817 968,52 The total subscribed share capital is currently set at

USD 37.117.965,52. The two major shareholders of the Bank hold 52,25% of the capetal, Mitsubishi UFJ Trust
and Banking Corporation by 62,729 and Bank of Tekyo-Mitsubishi UF.J Ltd. by 28,53%

Om August 7, 2014, MITSUBISHI UF) Global Custedy S.A. has established an external branch located at
Ormmande House, 12-13 lower Lesson Street, Dublin 2, Irelard. Mitsubishi UFJ Global Custody S A, Dublin
Branch is registered as credit institution pursuant to UE Regulation, 1803, under the number 807648,

.18.
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- continued -

Cn May 1, 2016, MITSUBISHI UF.J Global Custody 5. A, has changed its name o MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR

SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A. (MIEL).

On May 31, 2017, Masubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation obtained 100% of the voting shares of Masubishi
UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) 5.4

The members of the Board of Directors are Senior Executives of Migsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation G roup
and Independent Directors, The business palicy and valuation principles, unbess prescnbed by the legal requirements
existing in Luxembourg, are determined and monitored by the Board of Directors in accordance with those appled in
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group.

Nature of business

The abject of the Bank is the undertaking for its own account, a5 well as for the account of third parties aither within or
outside the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg, of any banking or financial cperations, as well as all other operations,
whether industrial or commercial o in real estate, which directly or indirectly ralate to the main object described above

Mare specifically, the Bank concentrates its activiies on investmant management senvices,

A significant volume of the Bank's transactions is concluded directly or indirectly with companies of Mitsubishi UF.J)
Financial Group.

Annual aecoynts

The Bank prepares its annual accounts in US Dollars (USD), the currency in which the capital is expressed. The Bank's

accounting year coincides with the calendar year,
The Bank's Board of Directors has made an assessment of the Bank's ability to continue as a going concarn and is
satisfied that the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future, Furthermore, the Board of

Directors is not aware of any material uncertaintes that may cast significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability to continue

as a going concem. Therefore, the annual accounts continue 1o be prepared on the going concem basis.

S 18-
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- continued -

MOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21,

22

23

The Bank prepares its annual accounts under the historical cost principle in accordance with the laws and regulations
in farce in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg and on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the banking
sector in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.

In cbsemving these, the follewing significant accounting policies are applied.

Th in il i in I

Assets and labilites are stated in the balance sheet on the date the amounts concerned become cleared funds, that is,
on their date of effective transfes.

The Bank maintains a multi-currency accounting system which records all fransactions in the currency or currencies of
the transaction, on the day on which the confract is concluded.

Assets and [@bilibes are converted into USD at the spot exchange rates applicable at the balance sheet date. Baoth
realised and unrealised profits and losses arising on revaluation are accounted for in the profit and loss account for the
year, except for those resultmyg from itemes specifically covered by a forwarnd foreign exchange contract (swap and
hedging forward foreign exchange contract) which are recorded at historical exchange rates.

Revenues and expensaes in foreign currencies are translated into USD daily at the prevailing exchange rates.

At the year-end, all unsetiled forward transactions are translated into WSD at the foraard rate prevailing on the Balance
Sheet date for the remaining matunbies,

Results on unsettied forsard transactions linked 1o spot transactions and on swap transactions are accrued at the
balance sheet date. In case of unrealised results on position covered by foreign exchange swap, these are neutralized
at year end.

Ei ial in riv it

The Bank's commiiments deriving from the derivatives finansial instruments such as interest rate swaps, foreard rate
agreements, financial futures and opbions are recorded on the transaction date ameng the off balance sheet items.

2147294
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- continued -

At the year-end, where necessary, a provision is set up in respect of individual unrealised losses resulting from the
revaluation of the Bank's commitments at market value. There is no provision for unrealized losses on forward deals
recorded for the year 2022 (2021: USD nil).

Mo provision is set up in those cases where a financial instrumeant clearly covers an asset or a liability and economic

unity is established or whene a financial instrurnent & hedged by a reverse transaction o that no cpen position exists.

It ks the Bank's policy to establish specific value adjustments in respect of doubtful and irecoverable debis. as deemed
appropriate by the Board of Directors.

‘alue adjustments, if any, are deducted from the assets to which they relate.

relate,

In accordance with the Luxembourg tax legislation, the Bank can establish a lump-sum provision for risk exposures, as
defined in the legislation governing prudential supervesion of banks. The purpose of the provision is to take account of
risks which are lkely to crystallise but which have not yet been identified as at the date of preparation of the annual

ACCoUNtS.

Pursuant to the Instructions ssued by the Direcleur des Contributions on December 16, 1997, this provisian should be
made before taxation and should not exceed 1,25% of the Bank's risk exposures.

The Bank has not constituted any provision as of December 31, 2022 (2021 USD 0).

S

215/294



2.7,

28

28

210

an

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UFJ INWVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- cantinued -
Transferable securities
Transferable securifies are recorded initially at their purchase price. The average cost method is used for initial

recognition. Value adjustments, calculated as described in note 2.5, or ansing from a diminution of value, ane deducted

from the account balance.

Tangible and intangibl

Tangible and intangible assets are valued at purchase price. The value of tangible and intangible fired assets with
lirnited useful econemic lives is reduced by value adjustments calculated to write off the value of such assets
systermatically over their useful economic lives as follows:

* Hardware equipment: 4 years,

«  Software: 4 years and 5 years;

s (ther intangible assets: 5 years,

« Other tangible assets: 10 years;
»  Goodwll: 5 years.

Iaxes

Taxes are accounted for on an accruals basis i the accounts of the year to which they relate. Provision for taxation
cormesponds to the difference between the estimated provisions created by the Bank and the advance payments for the
financial years for which no final tax assessment natices have been receved yet

Prepayment and accrued income

This asset item includes expendiung incurred during the financial year but relating to a subsequent inandial year,

Agcruals and deferred incorme

This liabikty item includes income received during the financial year but relating to a subsequent financial year.

-22-
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- continued -

Provisions

Provisions are intended to cover losses or debits the nature of which is clearly defined and which, at the date of the
balance sheet are ether likely to be incurred or certain to be incurred but uncerain as to their amount of as to the date
on which they will arise.

The Bank's main sireams of revenue are comprised of interests and commissions income. The Bank earns fee and
cormmission income from a wide range of services it provides to its customers.

Revenue is generally recognized when the related services are performed or recognized over the period that the
SENICES ane proveded,

MOTE 2 - LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Loans and advances to credit insttutions other than those repayable on demand, presented at their nominal value
may be analysed according to their remaining maturity as follows:

2022 2021

usoD uso

Mot more than three months 2.847.074 206 2722508023
Mare than three months but less than one year 1.337.522125 1.007 558.347
4. 284 596,331 3730155270

NOTE 4 - SHARES AND OTHER YARIABLE YIELD SECURITIES

Transfarable secunties shown under the item “Shares and other vanable yield securities” consist entirely of unlsted
securities for IS0 2646 (2021: USD 2.818).

-23-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- continued -

NOTE & - MOVEMEMNTS IN FIXED ASSETS

The following movements have occummed in the Bank's fixed assets in the course of the financial year:

FIXED ASSETS:
Gross value at Additions Disposals Exchange Gress value at Cumulative Net value at
the beginning difference the end of the value the end of
of the financial financial year adjustments the financial
year year
uso uso UsD uso usD usD UsD
1. Tangible assets 3.500.201 78.308 o -215.300 3.363.209 3.075.537 2876
a) Hardwarne 980,932 38617 o] 60338 250,211 822705 137.506
B} Other foctures and fittings,
fiat furniture, equipment and 2519260 3BEM o =154, 962 2402 988 2252 833 150,165
vehicles
2. Intangible assets 23,250,252 343,565 =43.0T 1310475 22,234.272 19.971.456 2262815
a) Softears 21.304.813 343565 -45.071 -1.310.475 20,288 832 18.026.017 2.262.815
b) Goodwill acquired for
valuakble
Consideration 1.945.439 0 o o 1.945 439 1.845.439 a
Tatal Fixed Assets 26.750.452 421,873 -43.0M -1.526.775 25597481 23.046.993 2.550.486

Goodwll acquired for valuable consideration represants the value of the takecver of part of the client base of another institution.

.24 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

HNOTE 6 - OTHER ASSETS

.35

219/294

2022 2021
USD usD
COther assels 534 227
534 227
NOTE 7 - PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME

The Bank's prepayments and accrued income may be analysed as follows:
2022 202
USD UsD
Accrued interest income 16.263 842 1809613
Accrued Interest income on Swaps 14.158.477 3225665
Commission from the Management Company 656138 T03.562
Commission on fiduciary operations 4.377.532 1,282,640
Commission on global custady 6.922 188 17.078.721
Commissicn on investment funds 11.432 600 60684, 153
COther accrued income 1.578.343 758.601
Cther Commissions 185,524 404 520
Cther prepay ments o 521.373
Frepaid general expenses B34 146 710,430
Prepard income taxes o 41877
VAT recoverable 485 8581 B20.480
56,886 2T0 37.675.055
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

HNOTEB - FOREIGH CURRENCY ASSETS

At December 31, 2022, the aggregate amount of the Bank's assets denominated in foreign currencies,
rransiated into USD, is USD 5.740. 717,202 (2021: USD 8.056.4585 201).

NOTE S - AMOUNTS OWED TO CUSTOMERS

As at December 31, 2022, there is no debts other than those repayable on demand owed to customers.
{as at December 31, 2021 debts other than repayable on demand amounted to LLSD 0}

HOTE 10 - OTHER LIABILITIES

The Bank's other labilties may be analysed as follows:

2022 2021

uUsh UsD

Preferentsal creditors 528.787 S22808
Sundry creditors 1.882 968 287157
2511.758 BBO 785
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

HOTE 11 - ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME

The Bank's accruals and deferred income may be analysed as follows:

2022 2021
uso uso
Accrued commission 9.571.741 14.627.561
Accrued general expenses 10.319.488 13.085 289
Accrued interest expenses 13.423.755 31.247
Deferred income related to commission o a
Ciher deferred income 2N 2335652
Meutrakzation of foréign exchange results on postion coveared
by foreign exchange swap (note 2.2) 67.606.762 20,170,200
Other accrued expenses T4 459 581.019
Cther suspense receipts (%) 6,750,643 521,374
127.795.347 51,353 342

{*) Other suspense receipts: Transitory account for suspense receipts payable after the December 31, 2022 to
the retated beneficiary.

.97
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

HOTE 12 - TAXATION - EXCHAMGE DIFFERENCE: DEFERRED TAXATIOM

The Bank prepares its annual accounts in USD, currency in which its statutory capital is denominated.
In September 2018 the Tax Authorities authorized the Bank to use the USD tax functional currency in
accordance with the Circular L.G.-A no 60 dated June 21, 2016.

Consequently, the fiscal and commercial balance sheets are established in the same currency the LISD.
As at December 31, 2022, there is no deferred tax.

NOTE 13 - OTHER PROVISIONS

The Bank's other provisions are made of provision for staff remuneration

2022 2021

UsD UsD

Provision for staff reruneration 2030747 2 238147
2,030,747 2 X30.147

NOTE 14 - SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2022, the Bank's subscribed and fully paid up capital amounts to USD 187,117 965 for
5.002.575 shares of Class A and 49 080 shares of Class B.

.28

222/294



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

HOTE 15 - MOVEMEMTS IN RESERVES AND RESULT BROUGHT FORWARD

Legal Other Result brought
MESErve MESErves forward
uso uspo uso

Balance at January 1, 2022 11.558.026 2T75.193.436 50.819
Profit for the year ended December 31, 2021 0 [1] 15887750
Appropration of profit

- Dividends paid to shareholders 1] o [13.331)
- Transfer to reserves for Net Worth Tax 2022 [1] 12,265 875 (12285 675)
- Transfer from Reserve for Net Warth Tax

208 o (4.276.351) 4276351

- Allocation to Free resemve 1] B.700.000 ({6, 700.000)
- Allecation to Legal reserve 7:39.395 o {739.385)
Balance at Decermnber 31, 2022 12507 41 289.852.760 325518

Under Luxembaurg law, the Bank must approgriate to a legal resene an amount equivalent 1o at least 5% of the
annual net profit until such reserve is equal to 10% of the share capital. This appropriation is made in the
folleweng year, Distribution of the legal reserve i restricted

Based on the Luxembourg tax [aw, the Bank has elected to get a tax credit for all or part of the net worth tax due
for that year. This tax credit is however, imited to the amount of the corporate income tax due for the previous
year before the imputabion of any tax credits. In arder to profit from this credit, the Bank must commit itself to
post before the end of the subsequent yvear an amount equal to five imes the net worth tax credit to a special
resarve, which has to be maintained for a period of five years.

As of December 31 2022, the spacial reserve for net worth tax is included in the Bank's other reserve for a tatal
amcunt of LISD 53.731 675 (2021: USD 45,742 351),

As reschved in the Annual General Meeting dated March 25, 2022, the Bank has allocated an amount of
USD 12265675 to special reserve for Met Warth Tax 2022 and reversed the available special reserve for Met

Worth Tax constituted in 2018 which amounted to LISD 4. 278,351,

The accumulated balance of special reserve for Met Worth Taxes states as follows as at 31 December 2022,
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December 31, 2022
- contnued -
2022
Reserve for Met
Worth Tax
Years UsD
208 8,700,000
29 8.981.000
2020 10,811,000
2021 11.874.000
2022 12265675
Balance at December 31, 2022 53,731 875
NOTE 16 - RELATED PARTY BALANCES
As at December 31, 2022, the following balances with related parties are cutstanding:
ASSETS
2022 2021
UsD UsD
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3.345.527.021 2.000.338. 586
Prepayments and accrued income 15.563.726 16.028 684
3,265,000 747 2016367250
LIABILITIES
2022 2024
usD usD
Amounts ovwed to credit institutions 2491655005 2852250135
Amounts owed to customers 475 838 557 B40 148 829
Accruals and deferred income 6,590,039 9626650
2,974,081 601 3802025614
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HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

The above transactions with related parties were made at conditions comparable with non-related
counterparties.

At the request of the Bank, the C55F has granted a total exemption for the expasures towards the group
{Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group) in the calculation of large exposure limits, in accordance with the Regulation
{EL) Mo ST5/2013 of June 26, 2013 (Part IV).

As at December 31, 2022, the amaunt towards the group falling under this exemplion amounts to
USD 3.488.714.401 and can be analysed as follows:

2022 2021

usD usD

Loans and advances to credit institutions 3338184418 1.808.585.500
Prepayments and accrued income 7937073 1.470.954
Foreign exchange transactions (Market Risk method) 145,582,912 134,630 654
3,489 714 401 1.944 657198

HOTE 1T - FOREIGN CURRENCY LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2022, the aggregate amount of liabilities denominated in foreign currencies translated into
USD is USD 56146356 504 (2021: 8.054.585.535).

HOTE 18 - CONTINGEMT LIABILITIES

The Bank's contingent liabilites may be analysed as follows:

2022 2021
uso usp
Counter-guarantess mswed 78775 245.003

As at the year-end, there wera no related party balances,

..
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HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

HOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS

The Bank has entered into certain commitments which are not disclosed neither in the Balance Sheet nor in the

Off Balance Sheet ltems, but which are significant for the purposes of assessing the financial situation af the

Bank. Details of such commitments are as follows:

2022 2021
usD usp
Commitments in respect of fixed rental payments contracted on
buildings 1,658 Te4 2798181
e ————— )

As at the year-end, there are no related party balances

NOTE 20 - OPERATIONS LINKED TO CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATES, INTEREST RATES AND OTHER MARKET
RATES

The following types of forsard transactions are outstanding as at Decemier 31, 2022 and 2021:

lin [remn hange r

- Forward exchange transactions (swaps, outnights).

Operations linked to the foreign currency exchange rates are made to a large extent for the purposes of

cavering the exieting posibions

NOTE 21 - INVESTMENT MAMNAGEMENT SERVICES AND UNDERWRITING FUNCTIONS

Management and agency senices provided by the Bank include:

- Custody and administration of transferable securities;
- Fiduciary representations;
- Agency functions;

- Partfolio management and advice.

.3,
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HOTE 22 - COMMISSIONS RECENABLE

2022 2021

UsD uso

Fees on Investment Funds 27477944 26016520
Fees on Global custody from Institutional customers 85.642.608 117847111
Fees on Fiduciary transactions 18,149,234 7630420
Fees on Services to Management Company 1.059.205 1134939
Ciher fees and commissions 1.457.573 1.416.253
134,526,564 154.145 281

Commissions recevable consist of the follovang:

Fees on Investment Funds consist of fees and commisssons charged to Investment Funds for custody senvices,
central administration, depositary and other services, The fees are calculated on the basis of the value of net
assets of the funds under administration.

Fees on Global custody from Institutonal customers consst of fees and commassions charged to institutional
customers for global custody services including securities trade management, settlement, conporate actions,
income collecton and proxy voting. The fees are calculated on the basis of the assets held under custody and
the number of transacticns.

Fees on Fiduciary transactions consist of fees and commissions eamed on fiduciary assets including custody
rransactions, cash management and fiduciary notes issuance. The fees are calculated on the basis of the

assets held under management and the number of transactions.

Fees on Services to Management Company include fees covening functional expenditures and fees for support

sefvices in accordance with the Semvice Level Agreament

Cther fees and commissions nclude varous fees such as listing agent fees, guarantee fees, banking services
fees and fund arder desk services feas.

By application of Article 68(2) of the law of June 17, 1992, on the annual accounts of credit instutions sources
of income have not been analysed by geographical region
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- contmued -
HOTE 23 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2022 2021
UsD uso
Adjustment of Income taxes regarding previous years 255 a
Adjustment for COMMISSION previous years 4. 308 298 1115225

Income from the adjustment of general expenses
regarding previous years 1.335.997 534,445
Sub-Custodian refund (*) 2,404 067 3820715
Adjustment of VAT regarding previous years 513673 a
Cher operating income 3.556 3,188
8.565.956 5473576

{*) Sub-Cusiodian refund: Migration costs refund from Citibank relating to change of sub-custodian from Brown
Bother Harriman to Citibank. Refer to Mate 11.

NOTE 24 - OTHER OPERATING CHARGES

2022 2021
usoD uspD

Charges from the adjustment of general
expenses regarding previous years TO01.672 178.276
Commission on previous years B0O2.718 B77.581
Interast on previous years 7812 42 505
(Others cperating losses 1.218.284 3825
2.730.496 1.414.703

228/294



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
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December 31, 2022
- contmued -

HOTE 25 - STAFF MUMBERS

The average number or persons employed dunng the financial year by the Bank is as follows:

2022 2021

Humber Mumber

Senior management 34 33

Middle managemeant &7 a5
Employeas 45 52

ﬁ 170

NOTE 26 - MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

The Bank has granted emaluments in respect of the financial year to the members of the managernial body of the
Bank by reason of ther responsibilities as follows:

2022 2021

uso usD

Senior management 5. 267400 6.240.642
OF which variable rémuneralion 853614 884,446

OFf which fix remuneration 5.413.788 5,364, 106

During the financial year, no pension commitments to the members of the Board of Directors and General
Management were made.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank did not grant any advances and credits to the members of the
Board of Directors and General Management.
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- contmued -

HOTE 2T - OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPEMSES

2022 2021

usD usD

Data charges G37.273 1.364,350
Maintenance 1132763 1.135.280
Membership fees 5,280,881 4913868
Professional fees 5885172 6.153.665
Rent and related expenses 1.687.297 1.738510
Sarvice contracts 5.738.520 7968 450
Service fee 3940850 3.500.029
System cost 15.057.27T1 17.858.719
Telecommunication expenses 525,035 561,452
Travellng, maoving, business trps 122.870 12374
Cther expenses 179,736 108287
41,159,788 45 4248534

NOTE 28 - TAX
28.1. ax on profit on ordinany activities

2022 2021

UsD UsD

Corporate Income Tax 15,407,163 3.710.052
Municipal Business Tax 5.641.287 1.379.361
21.048 480 5088413
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HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- continued -
2B.2 her not sh 1 th i

2022 2021

usD usD

VAT 1,905,860 1.786 322

Cther taxes 75.855 72329
1.981.754 1858851

NOTE 22 - PARENT UNDERTAKING

As of December 31, 2020, the Bank is a jointly capitalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation by 100 %, which are under the holding company Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG), which is
incorporated under the laws of Japan and whose registerad office is in Tokyo.

The annuwal accounts of the Bank are ncluded in the consolidated accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation, with Registered Financial Institution number 33 at Kanto Local Finance Bureau Japan and
registered address 4-5, Marunouchi 1-Chorme, Chiyeda-Ku, Tokyo 100-8212, Japan.

The consaldated accounts of the halding company Mitsubishi LFJ Financial Group (MUFG) may be obtained
from the head office at 7-1, Mamunouchi 2-Chome, Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo 100, Japan

NOTE 30 - DEPOSIT GUARANTEE SCHEME

The law rélated to the resalution, reorganisation and wanding-up measures of credit institutions and certain
investment firms and on deposit guarantee and investor compensation schemes (the “Law’), transposing into
Luxembourgish lawthe directve 200 4SWEL establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit
institutions and investment firms and the directive 201 4/48EL related to deposit guarantee and investor
compensation schemes, was passed on December 18, 2015

.57
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The deposit guarantee schemea ("Fonds de garantie des dépdls Luxembourg”™ (FGDL)) and the investor
compensaton system (" Systéme d indemnrisation des invesizsews Luxembowg” (SIIL)) cover eligible
deposits of each depositor up to an amount of EUR 100.000 and investments up to an amount of EUR 20.000.
The Law alse provides that deposits resulting from specific transactiens or fulfiling a specific secial or other
purposa are covered for an amount above EUR 100000 for a pericd of 12 months.

Credit institubons contribute on an annual basis to the Luxembourg banking resclution fund ("Fonds de
resclution Luxembaourg” (FRL)), respectively to the FGDL

The funded amount of the FRL shall reach by the end of 2024 at least 1% of covered deposits, as defined in
arficle 107(1) of the Law, of all authorized credit institutions in all participating Member States. This amount will
be collected during the years 2015 to 2024,

The target level of funding of the FGOL is sat at 0,8% of covered deposits, as defined in article 178(1) of the
Law, of thir relevant credit institutions and i to be reached by the end of 2018 through annual contributons.
This amount will be collected during the years 2016 to 2018, When the level of 0,8% is reached, the
Luxembourgish credit institutons are to continue to contribute for 8 additional years in order to constitute an
additional safety buffer of 0.8% of covered depeosits as defined in article 180(1) of the Law.

For the year end December 31, 2022, the Bank's annual contribution for FRL amounted to EUR 4115522

(S0 4.241.878). ( 2021 EUR 32451187 USD 3.841.1968).
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- pontinued -

NOTE 31 - AUDIT FEES

Within the framework af the EL audit legislation and the mandatory audit firm rotation, the Bank has appointed

BDO Audit 5.4, starting from the fiscal year 2020,

The fees of the Auditar of the Bank are a2 follows (excluding VAT)

2022 2021

usD usD

Audit fees 241,485 54 582
Audit related fees B7.237 87 530
Tax fees 26.691 33.839
335413 358.351

The other audit related fees provided of the Auditor included the following Service:

- |SAE 3402 Report for the period fram January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022,

The tax fees in relation to the financial year inciuded the following services

« Preparation of tax returns,
- Preparabion of VAT returns.
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Decermber 31, 2022. continued -

WOTE 32 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT DISCLOSURES

321, Erimary non-trading financial instruments
As at December 31, 2022, the analysis of primary non-trading financial instruments (the Bank has no trading portfolia) by class and residual maturty & the following:

£ 3 months =3 months =1 year > §years Total
£1 year £ 5 years
At carrying amount in USD UsD UsD UsD USD UsD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Balances with the BCL (including BCL reserve) 3825986158 0 i i 38250856 159
Loans and advances to credit institutions 2.84T 074206 1.337 522125 4] o 4. 284,506,331
Loans and advances to customers 41,095,068 0 0 0 41.095.903
Shares and other vanable yield securities 0 a i} 2646 2646
Other Assets o a Q o
Total Financial Assets 6.814,156.363 1.337 522128 [1] 2646 8.151.681.134
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrument class
Amounts oweed 1o credit institutions 2865200741 Q Q o 2565, 200.741
Amounts owed to customers, 4 852 402 519 0 i i 4 B52 402 519
Total Financial Liabilities T.51T 603260 [1] [1] [1] T.517.603.260
Of-balance sheel ilems disclased as contingencias
Guarantees 75775 a u] i 75,775
Total Guarantees T5.775 a 1] 1] 75775
-40 -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decernber 31, 2022 continued -
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As at December 31, 2027, the analysis of primary non-trading financial insiruments (the Bark has no trading portiobs) by class and residual maturdy is the following:

At carrying amount in USD
FINAMCIAL ASSETS

Instrument class

Balances with the BCL (including BCL reserve)
Leans and advances to credit institutions
Loans and advances lo custormers
Shares and other vanable yield securities
Other Assets

Total Financial Assets

FIMANCIAL LIABILITIES

Instrument class

Amounts oved bo credit institutions
Amounts cwed to customers.

Total Financial Liabilities

Off-balance shee! items disclosed as contingencies

Guarantees

Total Guarantees

< 3 months >3 months
51 year

UsD UsD

7083 833,508 0
27225098923 1007 556347
380571 0

0 0

o 0
5.820.038.152 1.007 586,347
3115184719 0
7206 246 667 0
10,321 411388 [1]
545003 a
545,003 a
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> year
5 5 years
usD

|ﬂ| oCDoooo

> Syears Total
ush usD
i) T.083.833.508

4] 3730155270

o 360571
2618 2618
i) i)
28159 10.827.587.318
o 3115.184.719

o 7206, 248 857

[1] 10.324.411.386

i) 545003

1] 545 003
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Decernber 31, 2022 continued -

322 i nontrading fin instrurmen

As at December 31, 2022, the analysis of OTC denvative non-trading financial instruments (the Bank has no trading portfolio) by class and residual maturity is the following:

£ 3 months > 3 months >1year > 5years Tatal Fair value
£ 1 year £ 5 years

At notional payable amount in USD uso UsD usD uso uso Uso
FIMAMCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Foreign exchange fransachions
Foreards. 1,858,385 8978 B02.914 4] 4] 1850 968602 56.671.005
Swaps. 276 202 BB 0 1] 4] 276,202 684 1.4600088
Total 2.175.568.662 £02.914 o o ZATEATI5T6 60.131.034
FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrument class
Foreign exchange transaclions
Foreards 1.8951.148.778 5836801 a o 1.851.733.379 5B 6500622
Swaps 3.420.660.974 o Q o 2420660974 80.871.843
Total 5.380.810.752 583.601 E E 5.381,394.353 139,522 465

These amaunts include OTC dervative non-trading financial nstruments with a trade date before December 31, 2022 and a value date after December 37, 2022

.42.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decernber 31, 2022 continued -

As at Decernber 31, 2021, the analysis of OTC demvative non-trading financial instrurments (the Bank has no frading portfolio) by class and residual raturity is the following

£ 3 months = 3 menths > 1 year = 5 years Tatal Fair value
£ 1 year £ 5 years

At notional payable amount in USD UsD uso usD UsD usD usD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Foreign exchange fransachions
Farwards 3.881.995.296 580,236 0 0 3.882.584 532 33.989.292
Swaps 1.385.808.552 0 0 0 1.385. 896,582 26.426.708
Total 5.267.893.878 589,236 0 0 5.268.483.114 52.416.000
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrument class
Forswgn exchange ransachions
Fareards 3915453725 591,608 Q 0 3916045 333 33.927.979
Swaps B.118.018.224 o 0 0 6.118.018.224 £0.321.335
Total 10.033.471.545 591608 0 0 _10.034.063.557 84.249.315

These amounts include OTC derative nonstrading financial instruments with a trade date before December 31, 2021 and a value date after December 31, 2021

.43.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- continued -

As at December 31, 2022 the Bank is exposed 1o the follcwang credit risk on primary non-trading financaal

instruments:

2022 2021
Carrying amount Carrying amount
inUsD In UsD
FINANCIAL ASSETS

By instrument class and geographic location
Cash, balances with the BCL 3.825.986.159 T.053.833.508
Of which BCL mirimum reserve BO.44T7. 866 97631550
EU member couniries 3 B25986.159 F.003.833.508
Loans and advances to credit institutions 4.284.596.311 3. 730155270
EU member countries 276.885.118 940,703 432
Naorth & Cenlral America GO0 289 269 §29.542.452
Agia 2933839603 1.825.388.304
Eurgpe, non-EU member counltries 374 268606 29.926.203
Augtralia and New Zealand 30.333.735 104,594, 879
Loans and advances to customers 41,085,958 380572
EU mermber countries 26460119 91423
Morth & Central America 9.368.347 1,357 565
Asra 5.267.532 2156733
Eurgpe, non-EU member countries 0 0
Shares and other variable yield securities 2646 2818
EU menber countries 2646 2818
Other Assets 534 227
EU member countries 534 227
Total B.151.681.668 10.827.597 545
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- continuad -
324, Inf ion Tt oM. ing fim Ii i

As at December 31, 2022, the Bank is exposed 1o the follewing credit risk on derivatives non-trading financial
instruments:

2022 2022
Metional/payable Risk equivalent
amount amount
inUsD in UsSD
FINAMCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EU mamber couniries 46212 155 253378
Amevica 143 248 397 2128578
Asia 290 566,686 2.156.843
Europe, non-EU mamber counines 1.499.947.654 S53131.205
Swaps
Europe, non-EU member coundries 276,202 684 1.460.088
Total 2176.171.5T6 60.131.094

L 45.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

December 31, 2022
- continued -

As at December 31, 2021, the Bank is exposed to the follewing credit risk on derivatives non-trading financial

instruments:

FINAMCIAL ASSETS

By instrument class and geographic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards

EU mevnber counines

America

Asia

Europe, nom-EU member countnes

Swaps
EU member counires

Total

MOTE 33 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

2021

Netienallpayatile

Amount
inUsD

280917358
2,575,793 556
J85.811.885
630,881,725

1.385.808.582

5.268.483.114

2021
Risk equivalent
amount

inUsD

1.814.411
24.076 449
2490877
5607 555

28.425. 705

62.416,000

The Bank is not aware of any adjusting or non-adjusting event that would have cccurred bebween

December 31, 2022 and the date when the present annual accounts were authonised for issue,

MOTE 34 - Contingencies

As it may occur in the normal course of business, the Bank is cccasonally subpect to certain clawms. The outcome

of litigations is intrinsically uncertain. The likelirood of any material claim being found in favour of a claimant for the

litigation currently in process is viewsd as remote by the Management, accardingly, ne related provisions are made

in these annual accounts. Should a reliable evaluation of a past event be possible, the respective provision will be

ke,
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¢!
UFJ S.A.

2023 30

010 4,692,187,089.76 692,332,205

020

030 2,682,344,966.68 395,780,000

040 2,009,842,123.08 296,552,205

050 55,652,935.19 8,211,591

060 55,652,935.19 8,211,591

070

080

090

096

097

098

099

100

120

130

141 2,704.52 399

142 2,704.52 399

143

144

181 2,084,320,576.16 307,541,501

182

183 2,084,320,576.16 307,541,501

240

250

260

270 1,356,117.68 200,095

280 1,356,117.68 200,095

290

300 2,368,995.89 349,545

310

320 2,368,995.89 349,545

330

340

350

360 28,778,853.14 4,246,320

370

380 6,864,667,272.34 1,012,881,656
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UFJ S.A.

2023 30

010 50,108,762.49 7,393,548

020 50,108,762.49 7,393,548

030

040

050

060

070

080

090

100

110 6,176,819,707.18 911,389,748

120 6,175,693,377.14 911,223,558

130

140 1,126,330.04 166,190

150

160

170

180

190

200

210

220

230

240 19,008,809.78 2,804,750

250 19,001,809.78 2,803,717

260 7,000.00 1,033

270

280 17,711,719.53 2,613,364

290

300 6,263,648,998.98 924,201,410
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UFJ S.A.

2023 30

010 187,117,965.90 27,609,256

020 187,117,965.90 27,609,256

030

040

050

060

070

080

090 0.00 0

095

100

110

120

122

124

320

330

340

350

360

128

130

140

150

155

165

170

180

190 1,725,327.17 254,572

200

210 364,038,890.34 53,713,938

220

230 364,038,890.34 53,713,938

240

250 48,136,090.02 7,102,480
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260

270

280

290

300 601,018,273.43 88,680,246

310 6,864,667,272.41 1,012,881,656
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S.A.

010

144,350,729.

25

21,298,950

020

29,086,681.

50

4,291,740

025

030

041

051

106,031,144.

89

15,644,895

070

080

9,063,434.

51

1,337,310

085

169,468.

35

25,005

090

100,333,415.

87

14,804,196

100

2,773,313.

48

409,202

110

120

97,252,445.

98

14,349,598

130

140

15,076.

36

2,225

145

292,580.

05

43,170

150

160

170

175

191

192

200

59,684,590.

73

8,806,461

210

17,373,438.

51

2,563,451

220

231

241

260

270

280

7,413,064.

51

1,093,798

287

290

300

310

320

330

340

3,489,801.

02

514,920
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350

2,059,751.73

303,916

355

95,171,579.40

14,042,567

360

26,482,543.32

3,907,499

370

12,419,637.57

1,832,518

380

14,062,905.75

2,074,982

385

2,844,673.04

419,732

390

1,192,662.99

175,977

400

643,283.10

94,916

410

420

549,379.89

81,061

425

426

427

430

435

440

450

460

482,472.51

71,189

481

491

482,472.51

71,189

510

520

530

540

550

560

570

580

590

600

610

64,169,227.54

9,468,170

620

16,033,137.52

2,365,689

630

48,136,090.02

7,102,480

640

650

660

670

48,136,090.02

7,102,480

680

690

48,136,090.02

7,102,480
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Brown

9,510

MUFG Lux Management Company S.A.

¢!
Brothers Harriman Trust Company Cayman Limited

(

2023 12 200
(

1985

(2 MUFG S.A.
(

2024 7,375,000

2024
159.97
(
S_A.
2011

G
(

2023 12 10 6,000
(
4

Management International

(

2022 12 100

11 7,978
MUFG
2011 61
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
1,564 300
Goldman Sachs Asset
147 5,500
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G Yarra Funds Management Limited

2022 12 1,127,000 950

(6 Goldman Sachs Asset Management
Co., Ltd.

(
2023 12 9,000
1996 23
2002 18
29 2007 30

2008 28

7

2024 405

G

2023 12 1,350

@

2023 875 5,000

(10

2023 1,000
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Independent auditor's report

To Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, solely in its capacity as trustee
of GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund, a sub-trust of MUGC GS Cayman Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund (the “Sub-Trust”), a sub-trust of MUGC GS Cayman Fund,
as at 30 September 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited
The Sub-Trust's financial statements comprise:

the statements of financial position as at 30 September 2023;
the schedule of investments as at 30 September 2023;
the statements of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statements of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
units for the year then ended;

the statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Sub-Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Appendix | - Advisory Fee Rates and Total Net Expense Ratios (Unaudited) (but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that

there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Sub-Trust's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Sub-Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Sub-Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Sub-Trust in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands

21 December 2023
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REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

To the Board of Directors,

Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A.
287-289, Route d"Arlon

L-1150 Luxembourg

Report on the audit of the annual accounts
Opinion

We have audited the annual accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg)
S_A. (the ““Bank””), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2022, and the profit and
loss account for the year then ended, and notes to the annual accounts, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the bank as at 31 December 2022, and of the results of its operations for the year
then ended in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the
preparation and presentation of the annual accounts.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of 23 July 2016
on the audit profession (““Law of 23 July 2016~~) and with International Standards on Auditing
(““I1SAs””) as adopted for Luxembourg by the ““Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier””
(““CSSF>?). Our responsibilities under the EU Regulation No 537/2014 , the law of 23 July 2016
and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the « Responsibilities of
the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” for the audit of the annual accounts» section of our report.
We are also independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by
the CSSF together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the annual
accounts, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the annual accounts of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of the audit of the annual accounts as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition - Commission receivable

Why the matter was considered to be
one of most significant in the audit

How the matter was addressed in the audit

We refer to Summary of significant
accounting policies - Note 2.15 -
Revenue Recognition and Note 22 on
Commission Receivable of the annual
accounts.

Commission receivable amounted to USD
134,826,564 as of 31 December 2022.
Commissions receivable mainly derive
from investment funds, fiduciary and
global custody operations.

The applicable rates per each type of
commission depend on the underlying
assets under custody and
administration, agreements and
services provided.

The recognition process of commission
receivable includes manual
intervention and it is considered to
be a key audit matter due to the
materiality of the related amounts,
combined with the volume of
transactions that are recorded.

Our audit focused on the following
procedures:

We held interviews with Finance and Billing
department and obtained an understanding of
the commission receivable recognition
process.

We assessed the design and implementation of
the internal controls surrounding commission
receivable, and tested operating
effectiveness of the relevant related key
controls.

We developed expectations for the aggregate
amounts per type of commission income and we
compared the expectations to the amounts
recorded by the Bank.

For a sample of the different types of
commissions:

we tested commission receivable by
performing independent recalculation of
the commissions for a sample of items.
This also included the reconciliation of
the fee terms to the underlying contracts
and the underlying basis to external
evidence;
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we agreed the receipt of accrued
commissions to payments subsequent year
end;

we included elements of
““unpredictability”” in the procedures
performed in response to the risk of
fraud by randomly selecting additional
items and by verifying appropriate
segregation of duties, as well as the
application of the ““4 eyes principle””,
within the fee and commission income
process.

Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information stated in the management report but does not include the annual accounts and our
report of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” thereon.

Our opinion on the annual accounts does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual accounts, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the annual accounts or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report this fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the annual accounts

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual
accounts in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the
preparation and presentation of the annual accounts, and for such internal control as the Board
of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual accounts, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing Bank"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

Responsibilities of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” for the audit of the annual accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual accounts as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of the
““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the EU Regulation
N° 537/2014, the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual
accounts.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law dated 23 July 2016
and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our report of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” to
the related disclosures in the annual accounts or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our report of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé””. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual accounts, including
the disclosures, and whether the annual accounts represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate to them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the annual accounts of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audit report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have been appointed as ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” by the Board of Directors on 21 March
2022 and the duration of our uninterrupted engagement, including previous renewals and
reappointments, is 3 years.

The management report is consistent with the annual accounts and has been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

We confirm that the prohibited non-audit services referred to in the EU Regulation N° 537/2014
were not provided and that we remained independent of the Bank in conducting the audit.
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Luxembourg, 14 March 2023

BDO Audit
Cabinet de révision agréé
represented by

Patrick Terazzi
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